
Chief Executive’s Office 
Chief Executive:  N.M. Pringle 

To:  All Members of Cabinet: 
 R.J. Phillips (Leader)
 G.V. Hyde (Deputy Leader)
 Mrs. L.O. Barnett
 P.J. Edwards
 Mrs. J.P. French
 J.C. Mayson
 D.W. Rule MBE
 R.V. Stockton
 D.B. Wilcox
 R.M. Wilson 

Your Ref:  

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct Line/Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

 

NMP/CD 

Mr. N.M. Pringle 

(01432) 260044 

(01432) 340189 

npringle@herefordshire.gov.uk 

8th December, 2004 

 

Dear Councillor, 
 
MEETING OF CABINET 
THURSDAY, 16TH DECEMBER, 2004 AT 2.15 P.M. 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD 
 

AGENDA (04/12) 
 
 
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 To receive any apologies for absence.   
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 To receive any declarations of interest by members in respect of items on this agenda.   
  
3. REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT SETTLEMENT 2005/06   
  
 To note the provisional Revenue Support Grant (RSG) for 2005/06 and consider its impact on 

the budget strategy for 2005/06.    (Pages 1 - 12) 
  
4. DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN 2005-08   
  
 To agree to the current draft Corporate Plan for 2005-08 being used immediately as the basis 

for the preparation of the Council's Annual Operating Plan and directorate and service plans 
for 2005-06.  (Pages 13 - 62) 

  
5. LOCAL AREA FORUMS   
  
 To receive feedback on the November 2004 round of Local Area Forums, Budget 

Consultation.  To note issues raised by the community and to continue to identify ways to 
improve and develop public consultation at Local Area Forums.  (Pages 63 - 70) 

. 



  
6. CORPORATE HEALTH PERFORMANCE   
  
 To receive an update on the Council's corporate performance in relation to our National and 

Local Best Value Performance Indicators from 1 April 2004 to 30 September 2004.  (Pages 
71 - 76) 

  
7. LEARNING AND SKILLS COUNCIL: STRATEGIC AREA REVIEW   
  
 To receive a report on the Strategic Area Review Herefordshire and Worcestershire currently 

being conducted by the Learning and Skills Council and to respond to the formal consultation. 
(Pages 77 - 84) 

  
8. REFORM OF THE REGISTRATION SERVICE   
  
 To agree the approach required to ensure a successful transition of this service to the 

Council.  (Pages 85 - 88) 
  
9. HR STRATEGY   
  
 To consider progress against the Council's Human Resources (HR) Strategy including main 

findings from the 2004 Staff Opinion Survey, and 2003-04 Exit Surveys.  (Pages 89 - 94) 
  
10. IEG4 STATEMENT   
  
 To approve the Implementing Electronic Government Return 2004 (IEG4).   

 
(Note:  Due to technical difficulties the Return is enclosed as a separate document.)  (Pages 
95 - 96) 

  
11. PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY REVIEW   
  
 To determine how best to take forward the recommendations contained in the Property 

Management Scrutiny Review which were considered by the Strategic Monitoring Committee. 
(Pages 97 - 100) 

  
EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
In the opinion of the Proper Officer, this appendix and the next item will not be, or are likely 
not to be, open to the public and press at the time they are considered. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 
12(A) of the Act as indicated below. 
 
  



 
 (a) PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY REVIEW 
   
  The attached appendix to the report is exempt.  (Pages 101 - 142) 
   
This item discloses any terms proposed or to be proposed by or to the authority in the course of 
negotiations for a contract for the acquisition or disposal of property or the supply of goods or 
services. 
  
12. EXTRA CARE HOUSING PROVISION   
  
 To note the actions taken to consider accommodating Unity Gardens on the former Nursery 

Site, Ledbury Road, Hereford and to agree to formally notify Unity Gardens of the outcome. 
(Pages 143 - 152) 

  
This item discloses: 

(a)information relating to any particular occupier or former occupier of, or applicant for, 
accommodation provided by or at the expense of the authority; and 

(b)any terms proposed or to be proposed by or to the Authority in the course of negotiations for a 
contract for the acquisition or disposal of property or the supply of goods or services. 

  
  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 

 
N.M. PRINGLE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 
Copies to: Chairman of the Council 

Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Vice-Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Chairmen of Scrutiny Committees 
Group Leaders 
Directors 
County Secretary and Solicitor 
County Treasurer 

 





E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\9\AI00004965\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc07/12/04 

The Public's Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 

unless the business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or 
‘exempt' information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of 
the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees 
and written statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members for up to six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a 
period of up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the 
background papers to a report is given at the end of each report).  A 
background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing 
the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all 
Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to 
items to be considered in public) made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have 
delegated decision making to their officers identifying the officers 
concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of 
access, subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a 
maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50, for postage).   

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to 
inspect and copy documents. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\9\AI00004965\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc07/12/04 

 
Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made 
available in large print or on tape.  Please contact 
the officer named below in advance of the meeting 
who will be pleased to deal with your request. 
The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for visitors 
in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 

Public Transport links 

• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 
approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco 
store in Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street 
/ Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its 
junction with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same 
bus stop. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you have any questions about this Agenda, how the Council works or would 
like more information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information 
described above, you may do so either by telephoning Mrs Christine Dyer on 
01432 260222 or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 
p.m. Monday - Thursday and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council 
Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 



FIREBROCK0.doc 21.05.97 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located 
at the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 





 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from  

Mr. I. Hyson, County Treasurer, on (01432) 260235  

RSGProvisionalSettlement2005060.doc  

REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT SETTLEMENT 2005/06 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY:  CORPORATE STRATEGY AND 
FINANCE 

CABINET 16TH DECEMBER, 2004  
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To note the provisional Revenue Support Grant (RSG) for 2005/06 and consider its impact 
on the Medium Term Financial Plan 2005/06-2007/08. 

Key Decision  

 This is not a key decision. 

Recommendation 

THAT  (a) the details of the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement be 
noted. 

(b) the current budget strategy be maintained, thereby maximising the 
Council’s room for manoeuvre in the final consideration of the budget 
for 2005/06 and 

(c) Cabinet requests Council to defer the March meeting of Council to 11th 
March, 2005. 

Reasons 

Final decisions on the budget are taken by full Council. 

Considerations 

1. The provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was issued by the Office of 
the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) on 2nd December, 2004. 

2. Preliminary analysis has been undertaken and whilst the settlement is more 
favourable than had been indicated from the figures provided as part of the 
Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) 2004, the Government’s 
assessment of level of council tax also appears to have been revised downward.  It is 
important to emphasise at this juncture that the most significant change has been as 
a result of the additional resources provided by Government.  However, there are 
also changes reflected in the settlement for transfer of funding both to and from local 
authority, Formula Spending Share (FSS), funded responsibilities.  The County 
Treasurer will report at the meeting on any further significant issues emerging. 

AGENDA ITEM 3

1



3. Appendices 1-4 to this report provide details of the settlement.  The key elements to 
draw to Cabinet’s attention, in addition to the extra funding, are as follows: 

• An increase in FSS (2004/05 adjusted base) from £173,193,164 to 
£182,373,188 or 5.3% taking account of the transfer of functions. 

• A corresponding increase in central funding of 5.3%. 

• A transfer of £75,000,000 nationally from the Schools Block to EPCS (Other 
Services). 

• Significant increase in capital financing block (under review). 

• Flood defence levies transferred to Environment Agency. 

• Lower than average increase in Highways. 

• Preserved rights funding (Social Care) transferred to local authorities 
significantly reduced/deferred. 

Impact on budget strategy 

4. On the basis of the work done thus far, the Council’s net grant position, when 
compared with that previously reported, is some £2,000,000 better than had been 
indicated by CSR 2004.  By far and away the most significant factor has been the 
additional resources put into the system, events which were forecast when at a late 
stage the settlement date was postponed.  Although subject to further clarification, it 
seems clear that the additional resources are one-off for 2005/06 only.  The 
additional resources should not, however, be seen as obviating the need for the 
current budget exercise because they will in part be required to meet an expectation 
by Government of lower increases in Council Tax. 

5. A further major change to have developed over the last few weeks is the reduction in 
the amount of preserved rights expenditure (Social Care), currently funded by 
specific grants, to be transferred into mainstream FSS funding.  Cabinet will recall the 
advice, given at the meeting on 21st October when the CSR 2004 was considered, 
and reiterated at Budget Panel, that the Revenue Support Grant settlement could be 
some £1,000,000 higher than forecast, from CSR 2004, but this was uncertain as the 
issue was still under review.  The transfer of responsibility reflected in the settlement 
amends the clear statement about transfer made in conjunction with CSR 2004 by 
both postponing and phasing the original proposal.  The sum involved is in the order 
of £1,000,000.  The ODPM has now confirmed that further transfer to FSS funding 
will take place in 2006/07.  On the basis of current information the Council should 
prudently anticipate the loss of the sum of £1,000,000 in 2006/07. 

6. ODPM guidance has also been recently received regarding the approach to be taken 
in implementing the results of the triennial actuarial review of the Superannuation 
Fund.  The essence of that advice is the adoption of a long-term perspective in the 
recovery strategy for such funds nationally.  In applying the recommended criteria, 
stepped increases in contributions will now apply for the period 2005/06 to 2010/11.  
The consequence is a reduction in expected costs of £750,000 in 2005/06 with cost 
increases by some £200,000 per annum thereafter.  Again, the estimates provided by 
the Superannuation Authority will have to be met as originally assessed but the 
revised advice allows the  increase to be phased over a longer period. 

7. Therefore, whilst the increase in funding reflected above might afford some short 

2



term relief, and will help in bridging the “budget gap”, it should not be seen as 
providing a longer term solution to the budget position, merely providing further 
breathing space.  The potential withdrawal of the additional resources in 2006/07 in 
effect just transfers part of the funding gap into later years. 

8. The additional timeframe over which to optimise the Council’s ongoing efforts to 
secure economies from procurement and the Service Improvement Programme is 
helpful but the need to drive forward these issues remains. 

9. A further factor is the absolute necessity of avoiding capping.  The most recent 
pronouncements talk in terms of average increases below 5%.  The ODPM also 
refers to assumed average rises in Council Tax yield of 4.8% (compared to 6.7% in 
CSR 2004) reduced by increases in tax base equivalent to 1.2%.  The equivalent 
figures for Herefordshire are 5.2% and 0.5% respectively but are subject to final 
confirmation. 

10. The position regarding capping will, of course, become clearer as the budget 
proposals of other authorities, particularly Unitary ones with whom Herefordshire 
would be compared for capping purposes, emerge. 

11. Cabinet is, therefore, advised to maintain the existing budget strategy on the basis 
that it will provide the most effective platform from which final budget decisions,  
informed by up to date information on the national position, can be considered by full 
Council in March.  Accordingly, it is recommended that the date of Council is deferred 
by a week to 11th March, 2005. 

Risk Management 

Continuing with the existing budget strategy and planning for the medium term reduces the  
risk of setting a budget inconsistent with the Council’s key priorities. 

Consultees 

None. 

Background Papers 

RSG Settlement 2nd December 2004. 

 

3



4



APPENDIX 1 

SUMMARY OF LGA BRIEFING 

Revenue Support Grant Settlement 2005/06 

2 December 2004 
 
1. Summary 
The provisional Local Government Finance Settlement for 2005/06 was issued by ODPM on 
2nd December 2004.  This briefing provides initial commentary and analysis.   
 
Key points of the provisional Settlement are: 
 
� Headline increase of 6.2% in Aggregate External Finance (AEF) and increase of 5.9% in 

Total Assumed Spending (TAS). This compares with increases of 7.3% in AEF and 6.2% 
in TAS in 2004/05; 

� Increase of 5.6% in total Formula Grant and 5.4% in Formula Spending Shares;  

� an extra £637m beyond the figures in Spending Review 2004 (SR2004).  This includes: 

o an extra £358m in Revenue Support Grant and an extra £50m in police grant; 

o new money amounting to £100m for safeguarding children and £100m for access 
and systems capacity, for 2005/06 only; 

o £28m extra for fire to enable authorities not to repay transitional funding.  

� Additional resources to deal with pressures as follows: 

o £100m relief of pensions pressures due to amended guidance; 

o £60m for additional planning and licensing fees income; 

o £50m for reprofiling of waste targets. 

� No changes in total Formula Spending Shares beyond those announced in Spending 
Review 2004, but a shift of £75m from the Schools Block to EPCS.  

� An assumed council tax yield rise of 4.8%, compared with 6.7% in Spending Review 
2004; it is assumed within that the taxbase will rise by 1.2% and assumed Band D council 
tax by 3.6%. 

� Reduction in ring-fenced grant to 9% of total grant; but with a prospect of it rising to 
around 50% with the introduction of a ring-fenced schools grant in 2006/07.   

� No formula changes, however updated data used: 2003 mid-year population estimates 
and New Earnings Survey in the calculation of the Area Cost Adjustment. 

� Damping arrangements as follows; no ceilings for any class of authority; floors of 4% for 
authorities with education and social services responsibilities, 3.75% for police authorities 
and 2.5% for shire districts and fire authorities.  These are paid for by scaling down the 
grant increases to authorities within the same class above the floor. 

 
Education 
 
There is an FSS increase of 5.6%; compared with a figure of 5.9% in SR2004.  This 
reduction is owing to a shift of £75m from the Schools Block to EPCS.  The Schools Block 
has an increase of 5.8% and the LEA block is increased by 4.2%.   
 
Total specific grants are projected to be £4,436m compared with £4,043m in 2004/05, an 
increase of 9.7%. Grants within the Standards Fund will be £1,540m compared with £1,296m 
in 2004/05.  However, as announced on 15 October matched funding contributions on some 
IT grants have increased. 
 

5



APPENDIX 1 

The Schools FSS block has a floor of 5.5% per pupil (5.8% in the Outer London pay area) 
and a ceiling of 8.75%.  The LEA block also has floors and ceilings of 3.5% and 4.95%. 
 
All authorities will receive sufficient formula grant to enable their Schools FSS increase to be 
passported in full.  However for 4 authorities this will account for the whole of their formula 
grant increase.  These authorities are: Richmond, Poole, Bromley and West Sussex.   
 
The shift from Education to EPCS has eased passporting pressures on authorities; without it 
many more authorities would have been in a 100% passporting position. 
 
 
Personal Social Services  
 
PSS formula spending shares have increased by 6%; split into increases of 6.9% for 
Children’s PSS, 6% for Elderly PSS and 5.2% for Other Adults PSS.  These figures are as in 
SR2004 but now take into account the shift from specific grants into FSS.   
 
The total of specific and special grants is £2,128m.  The FSS baseline has been increased 
by £367m to take account of the shift in specific grants.  This has led to reductions of £205m 
for residential allowances, £110m for preserved rights and £53m for training support.   
 
There is a one off addition of £100m for access and systems capacity and £100m for 
childrens services allowing the safeguarding children grant paid in 2004/05 to be continued 
to 2005/06.  
 
Full details are in Local Authority Social Services letters (2004)25 and (2004)26, available at 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/PublicationsAndStatistics/LettersAndCirculars/LocalAuthoritySocialServ
icesLetters/AllLASSLs/fs/en#4908356  
 
 
Highways Maintenance 
 
Total FSS has increased by £2.5%, in line with SR2004.   
 
 
Environmental, Protective and Cultural Services 
 
The EPCS increase is 2.5%; meaning an increase of 2.8% for county services and 2.4% for 
district services.  There is £75m of new money compared with SR2004, a shift from the 
Schools Block, as noted above. 
 
The Supporting People allocations for 05/06 have also been announced.  Details can be 
found at http://www.spkweb.org.uk/WhatsHappening/2.1News.asp Most authorities have 
reductions of 5% in line with the reductions in national control totals.   
 
 
Capital Financing 
 
The figures for capital financing are £3,268.6m, reduced by £425m for PFI Special Grant.  
The elements for interest receipts and interest on capital receipts are £451m and £367m 
respectively, leaving £3,661.6m to be distributed as the debt charges element. 
 
Further details of how these figures are worked out are at: 
 http://www.lga.gov.uk/OurWork.asp?lsection=59&ccat=1022  
 
 
 

6



APPENDIX 1 

2. The Financing of Total Assumed Spending 
 
Table 1 provides a summary of central government support for revenue expenditure for 
2005/06 and how that support has changed since 2004/05. 
 
Table 1: Financing of Total Assumed Spending 2005/06 
 

  £ billion % of TAS % Change 
from 2004/05 

adjusted
Total Assumed Spending         79,577 100% 5.9%

Specific Grants         15,406 19% 7.9%
RSG          26,653 33% -2.2%

Government Grants         42,059 53% 1.3%
NNDR         18,000 23% 20.0%
AEF for receiving authorities         60,059 75% 6.2%
Assumed Council Tax yield         19,517 25% 4.8%
 
Note: Change is measured from 2004/05 adjusted TAS and adjusted AEF  
 
The national non-domestic rates (NNDR) poundage will increase by 3.1% in line with the 
September 2004 Retail Price Index.  The NNDR poundage (the multiplier) for England for 
2005/06 is likely to be 42.2p compared to 45.6p in 2004/05.  This takes account of a rise in 
gross rateable value of 17.7% due to revaluation and an adjustment for estimated losses 
from appeals. 
 
Figures released for SR2004 indicated that the amount to be funded by councils, via the 
council tax, was anticipated to increase by 6.7%. This was in direct contradiction to the 
government’s view that council tax increases should be in low single figures in 2005-06.  
 
Today’s pre-budget report recognised that the SR2004 failed sufficiently to recognise the 
pressures facing local authorities, and announced an additional £358m for RSG in 2005/06. 
Income from council tax is now assumed to increase by 4.8% on an adjusted basis.  
Assumed National Council Tax will increase by 3.6%, from £1061 to £1099, with taxbase 
growing by 1.2%.    
 
Average council tax in 2004/05 was £1,167.  Actual council taxes in 05/06 will depend upon 
decisions by authorities.  
 
The Government have said they are “prepared to take even tougher capping action next 
year” than in 2004/05, to achieve their “low single figures” expectations. The LGA has made 
it clear our strong opposition to any such move.  
 
 
3. Ring-fenced grants 
 
The amount of grant that is ring-fenced has fallen to 9%, in line with government promises in 
Spending Review 2002.  The LGA had urged that the level of ring-fencing be cut to 4.5%; 
the level it was at in 1997/98. 
 
This reduction is welcome but it is expected to be sharply reversed in 2006/07, when, if the 
government go ahead with their proposals to ring-fence schools funding, the amount of grant 
that is ring-fenced will increase to over 50% of the total. 
 
 
 
 

7



APPENDIX 1 

4. Formula Spending Shares changes 
 
There is a formula freeze for 2005-06, so there are no formula changes, however: 
 
� An amending report for 2003-04 was issued on 18th November 2004 to take account of 

updated data (primarily revised 2001 mid-year population estimates) and rerun the 
regressions underlying formulae for personal social services, highways and fire. The 
Assumed National Council Tax shares, set judgementally in 2003-04, were also changed 
in order to ensure that shire districts as a class do not suffer any grant loss.  Effects have 
been taken into account in 2005/06, with the proviso that no authority receives a grant 
increase lower than the floor for that class of authority. 

� New 2003 mid-year population estimates will have an impact, particularly in London, 
where numbers are estimated to have fallen.  

� Using updated New Earnings Survey data in the calculation of the Area Cost Adjustment 
(ACA), produces small changes in the ACA calculated for each area, compared to 2004-
05.  However, these changes are large enough to alter the authorities which receive an 
ACA top-up e.g. Merseyside loses; Inner London gains. 

Some data in the settlement will continue to come from the 1991 census. The Government 
take the view that, since many indicators have changed greatly from 1991 to 2001, it would 
be inappropriate to incorporate new data without changing the underlying formula, which 
would breach the freeze.   
 
 
5. Damping Arrangements  
 
Damping arrangements will continue to operate so that every authority will get at least the 
grant floor for that class of authority.  This will be paid for by scaling back the grant increase 
above the floor for other authorities in that class.  There will no longer be a grant ceiling for 
any class of authority.  
 
The table below summarises the position compared with 2004-05 

 

Education/ 
Social 

Services 
Shire 

Districts Police Fire 
2004-05       
Floor 4.0%† 3.00% 3.25% 3.50%
Ceiling 7.50% 50.0%* 25.0%* 5.00%
Middle -6.30% -78.50% -99.50% -16.92%
2005-06       
Floor 4.00%† 2.50% 3.75% 2.50%
Ceiling  - - - -
Middle -11.37% -59.20% -55.93% -42.23%

†this floor is higher for some authorities to enable them to have a sufficient grant increase to 
passport in full 
*these were notional figures for ODPM modelling purposes.  The floor was paid for wholly by 
scaling down the grant increase of authorities in the middle. 
 
The LGA had been consistently opposed to ceilings, which penalise those authorities for 
which higher than average grant increases are due to increases in demand such as those 
reflected in pupil numbers and population figures, and therefore welcomes this change. 

8



A
PP

E
N

D
IX

 2
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 P
O

SI
T

IO
N

 (£
m

)
20

04
/2

00
5

20
04

/2
00

5
20

05
/2

00
6

(L
G

FS
)

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

A
dj

us
te

d
(L

G
FS

)
C

as
h

'R
ea

l'
B

as
e

In
cr

ea
se

In
cr

ea
se

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

26
,4

02
   

   
  

(2
2)

26
,3

80
   

   
  

27
,8

70
   

   
  

5.
6%

5.
6%

PE
R

SO
N

A
L

 S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

12
,4

27
   

   
  

36
7

12
,7

94
   

   
  

13
,5

67
   

   
  

9.
2%

6.
0%

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

2,
00

4
   

   
   

 
0

2,
00

4
   

   
   

 
2,

05
4

   
   

   
 

2.
5%

2.
5%

E
 P

 C
 S

11
,1

52
   

   
  

(4
6)

11
,1

06
   

   
  

11
,3

85
   

   
  

2.
1%

2.
5%

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
2,

38
7

   
   

   
 

0
2,

38
7

   
   

   
 

2,
84

4
   

   
   

 
19

.1
%

19
.1

%
54

,3
72

   
   

  
29

9
54

,6
71

   
   

  
57

,7
19

   
   

  
6.

2%
5.

6%
PO

LI
C

E
4,

35
5

   
   

   
 

0
4,

35
5

   
   

   
 

4,
55

4
   

   
   

 
4.

6%
4.

6%
FI

R
E

1,
84

8
   

   
   

 
0

1,
84

8
   

   
   

 
1,

89
8

   
   

   
 

2.
7%

2.
7%

T
O

T
A

L
60

,5
75

   
   

  
29

9
   

   
   

   
 

60
,8

74
   

   
  

64
,1

71
   

   
  

5.
9%

5.
4%

H
E

R
E

FO
R

D
SH

IR
E

 P
O

SI
T

IO
N

 (£
00

0'
s)

20
04

/2
00

5
20

04
/2

00
5

20
05

/2
00

6
(L

G
FS

)
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
A

dj
us

te
d

(L
G

FS
)

C
as

h
'R

ea
l'

B
as

e
In

cr
ea

se
In

cr
ea

se
E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
84

,0
54

   
   

  
0

84
,0

54
   

   
  

87
,9

86
   

   
  

4.
7%

4.
7%

PE
R

SO
N

A
L

 S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

36
,1

86
   

   
  

1,
50

3
37

,6
89

   
   

  
40

,0
06

   
   

  
10

.6
%

6.
1%

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

8,
66

5
   

   
   

 
(0

)
8,

66
5

   
   

   
 

8,
76

0
   

   
   

 
1.

1%
1.

1%
E

 P
 C

 S
36

,6
03

   
   

  
(1

,4
19

)
35

,1
83

   
   

  
36

,0
36

   
   

  
(1

.5
%

)
2.

4%
C

A
PI

T
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

7,
59

5
   

   
   

 
6

7,
60

1
   

   
   

 
9,

58
4

   
   

   
 

26
.2

%
26

.1
%

17
3,

10
3

   
   

90
17

3,
19

3
   

   
18

2,
37

3
   

   
5.

4%
5.

3%

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

, n
at

io
na

lly
:

E
du

ca
tio

n
(£

21
.9

12
m

) A
ca

de
m

ie
s

) N
il

Pe
rs

on
al

 S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s

£5
3.

3m
 T

ra
in

in
g 

Su
pp

or
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e
) 

£2
04

.7
4m

 R
es

id
en

tia
l A

llo
w

an
ce

s
)  

£1
,5

03
k

£1
10

.0
49

m
 P

re
se

rv
ed

 R
ig

ht
s G

ra
nt

) 
(£

0.
73

2m
) S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
In

sp
ec

tio
n

) 

E
PC

S 
(E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l, 
Pr

ot
ec

tiv
e 

&
 C

ul
tu

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s)

(£
80

.0
14

m
) M

ag
is

tra
te

s C
ou

rts
)

(£
0.

14
6m

) R
es

er
vo

ir 
A

ct
 D

ut
ie

s
)

£3
6.

90
1 

C
iv

il 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

ie
s

) (
£1

,4
19

k)
(£

2.
58

7m
) W

el
sh

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
Le

vi
es

)
(£

0.
58

5m
) C

rit
ic

al
 O

rd
in

ar
y 

W
at

er
w

ay
s

)

9



A
PP

E
N

D
IX

 3

H
E

R
E

FO
R

D
SH

IR
E

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N
A

L
 S

E
T

T
L

E
M

E
N

T
 2

00
5/

20
0 6

20
04

/2
00

5
20

05
/2

00
6

FS
S

Pr
ov

is
io

na
l

In
cr

ea
se

20
05

/2
00

6
V

ar
ia

nc
e

In
cr

ea
se

20
05

/2
00

6
V

ar
ia

nc
e

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
%

%
£0

00
's

£0
00

's
%

£0
00

's
£0

00
's

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

84
,0

54
   

  
87

,9
86

   
   

 
3,

93
3

4.
7%

5.
6%

88
,7

25
(7

39
)

5.
9%

89
,0

13
   

 
(1

,0
27

)
PE

R
SO

N
A

L
 S

O
C

IA
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
36

,1
86

   
  

40
,0

06
   

   
 

3,
82

0
10

.6
%

9.
2%

39
,5

07
49

9 
9.

2%
39

,5
15

   
 

49
1 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

8,
66

5
   

   
 

8,
76

0
   

   
   

95
1.

1%
2.

5%
8,

88
0

(1
20

)
2.

5%
8,

88
2

   
   

(1
22

)
E

 P
 C

 S
36

,6
03

   
  

36
,0

36
   

   
 

(5
66

)
(1

.5
%

)
2.

1%
37

,3
66

(1
,3

30
)

0.
6%

36
,8

22
   

 
(7

86
)

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
7,

59
5

   
   

 
9,

58
4

   
   

   
1,

98
8

26
.2

%
19

.1
%

9,
04

8
53

6 
16

.7
%

8,
86

4
   

   
72

0 

17
3,

10
3

  
18

2,
37

3
   

  
9,

27
0

5.
4%

6.
2%

18
3,

52
6

(1
,1

53
)

5.
8%

18
3,

09
6

  
(7

23
)

Th
e 

se
ct

io
n,

 a
bo

ve
, s

ho
w

s t
he

 p
os

iti
on

Th
e 

se
ct

io
n,

 a
bo

ve
, s

ho
w

s t
he

 p
os

iti
on

as
 it

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
if 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 re

ce
iv

ed
as

 it
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

if 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 re
ce

iv
ed

th
e 

sa
m

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s a

s t
he

 n
at

io
na

l
th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s a

nn
ou

nc
ed

 in
 th

e 
Sp

en
di

ng
in

cr
ea

se
s.

R
ev

ie
w

 2
00

4.

A
ve

ra
ge

 N
at

io
na

l I
nc

re
as

e
(a

s p
er

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n)

(a
s p

er
 S

pe
nd

in
g 

R
ev

ie
w

)
In

cr
ea

se
/D

ec
re

as
e

A
ve

ra
ge

 N
at

io
na

l I
nc

re
as

e

10



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL
PROVISIONAL FSS 2005/2006

APPENDIX 4

Settlement Provisional
2004/2005 2005/2006 Increase/ Increase/

FSS FSS (Decrease) (Decrease)
£ £ £ %

Education Primary 27,571,483     28,706,229     1,134,746 4.12%
Secondary 29,456,372     30,744,468     1,288,096 4.37%
Under 5 7,827,614       8,380,681       553,067 7.07%
High Cost Pupils 6,842,961       7,367,202       524,241 7.66%
Youth & Community 1,269,236       1,352,899       83,663 6.59%
LEA 11,086,221     11,434,999     348,778 3.15%

84,053,886   87,986,478   3,932,592 4.68%

Personal Social Services Children's 7,842,525       8,375,390       532,865 6.79%
Younger Adult's 9,594,487       10,436,417     841,930 8.78%
Older People's 18,749,224     21,194,595     2,445,371 13.04%

36,186,235   40,006,402   3,820,167 10.56%

Highway Maintenance 8,665,290     8,760,224     94,934 1.10%

E P C S District 23,124,228     23,662,111     537,883 2.33%
County 11,672,302     11,811,556     139,254 1.19%
Flood Defence 1,502,802       259,789         (1,243,013) (82.71%)
Continuing EA Levies 3,326             3,022             (304) (9.14%)
Fixed Costs 300,000         300,000         0 0.00%

36,602,657   36,036,478   (566,179) (1.55%)

Capital Financing 7,595,252     9,583,607     1,988,355 26.18%

Totals 173,103,321 182,373,189 9,269,868 5.36%

SUMMARY Settlement Provisional
2004/2005 2005/2006 Increase/ Increase/

FSS FSS (Decrease) (Decrease)
£ £ £ %

EDUCATION 84,053,886   87,986,478   3,932,592 4.68%
PERSONAL SOCIAL SERVICES 36,186,235   40,006,402   3,820,167 10.56%
HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE 8,665,290     8,760,224     94,934 1.10%
E P C S 36,602,657   36,036,478   (566,179) (1.55%)
CAPITAL FINANCING 7,595,252     9,583,607     1,988,355 26.18%

173,103,321 182,373,189 9,269,868 5.36%

Revenue Support Grant 62,010,889     58,401,164     (3,609,725) (5.82%)
Redistributed Business Rates 49,296,906     58,954,415     9,657,509 19.59%
TOTAL FORMULA GRANT 111,307,795 117,355,579 6,047,784 5.43%

11



12



  

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Steve Martin, Corporate Policy and 
Research Manager on 01432 261877 

DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN 2005-08 
PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY: 
CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE 

CABINET  16TH DECEMBER, 2004 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To agree to the current draft Corporate Plan for 2005-08 being used immediately as the 
basis for the preparation of the Council’s Annual Operating Plan and directorate and service 
plans for 2005-06.  

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.   

Recommendation 

THAT  (a) the draft Corporate Plan for 2005-08 at Annex 1 should be used 
immediately as the basis for the preparation of the Council’s Annual 
Operating Plan and directorate and service plans;  

 (b) the final versions of all these plans should reflect budget decisions and 
the Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA2G) between the Council and 
the UK Government; and  

 (c) the proposed final version of the Corporate Plan be approved in 
February, prior to its consideration by Council in March.  

Reasons 

The Corporate Plan establishes the Council’s priorities and what will be done to achieve 
them.  Its success depends on an Annual Operating Plan for the Council as a whole, and 
directorate and service plans, carrying the Corporate Plan objectives into detailed effect year 
by year.  The Corporate Plan and the Annual Operating Plan for 2005-06 will need to be 
approved by the Council in March.  In the meantime, there is a need to use the draft 
Corporate Plan to drive the preparation of the detailed plans for 2005-06.   

Considerations 

1. Cabinet agreed the new corporate planning process at its meeting on 9 September 
2004.  It also agreed the broad structure and content of the Corporate Plan for 2005-
08.  The draft Plan at Annex 1 has been prepared on this basis. 

2. The Plan must be affordable.  It has therefore been prepared using prudent 
assumptions about the financial resources that are likely to be available to the 

AGENDA ITEM 4

13



Council over the next three years.  These are explained in the draft Plan.   

3. The final version of the Plan – and specifically the targets for what the Council aims 
to achieve by the end of March 2008 - will need to take into account the impact of this 
year’s grant settlement and decisions on Council Tax for 2005-06.  Given the annual 
basis of the settlement, it will be necessary for this Corporate Plan to rely on prudent 
assumptions about financial resources for 2006-07 and 2007-08.  The Plan will, 
however, be updated annually so that it always looks forward three years.   

4. It will be necessary for the Plan to take into account the new Local Public Service 
Agreement (LPSA2G) with the UK Government.  Negotiations about the Agreement 
should be concluded during February 2005.  The Plan will need to include the stretch 
targets, which may require some modification of those included in the draft Plan.  

5. The final Plan will also need to reflect the emerging national framework within which 
the Council will implement the “Every Child Matters” agenda and the Children’s Act     

Financial Implications 

The draft Plan is designed to be deliverable within the financial resources available to the 
Council.  It will be finalised on the basis of up-to-date information.  

Alternative Options 

Cabinet has decided what kind of Corporate Plan it wants.  In agreeing this draft Plan it is 
determining its priorities and rejecting alternative options.  It will, nonetheless, be able to 
review the options in considering the proposed final Plan in February. 

Risk Management 

The Plan identifies the risks to its implementation and says how they will be managed.  

Consultees 

There has been extensive public consultation in recent months about future budget options.  
Cabinet will take the results into account, together with the advice of the Budget Panel on 
2005-06 budgets, in considering the proposed final Plan in February. 

It is intended to share the draft Plan with the members of the Herefordshire Partnership 
Board, and to take their views into account before finalising it.   

Background Papers 

None identified. 

14



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

1 

 
 

 
HEREFORDSHIRE 
COUNCIL 
 
 
 
CORPORATE PLAN 
 2005 to 2008 
 
 
 
Action for a better 
Herefordshire 
 

15



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

2 

Contents 

 Page(s)

Introduction 

Setting the Scene 

What the Council Can Do 

The Challenges 

The Council’s Response 

Performance April 2003 – December 2004 

Priorities 

Identifying and Managing Risk 

The Action Plan 2005-08 

Part One – Making a reality of the Herefordshire Plan: service 
targets  

Part Two - Making it happen through greater customer focus 
and organisational improvement 

Appendices [1 to 5 to be added] 

Appendix 1 - Income in 2004-05 by source 

Appendix 2 - Budgets in 2004-05 by service/corporate area 

Appendix 3 – Estimated income by source 2005-08 

Appendix 4 – Proposed expenditure 2005-08 by service/corporate area  

Appendix 5 – Capital programme 2005 –08 

Appendix 6 – The corporate planning process 

 

16



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

3 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The Council shares a vision for a better Herefordshire with a wide range of partner 
organisations in the private, public and voluntary sectors, and with those 
representing communities. It is set out in The Herefordshire Plan. This Corporate 
Plan says what the Council will do over the next three years to play its full part in 
turning that vision into reality.  

1.2 The Herefordshire Plan will be reviewed during 2005. Any changes will be taken into 
account when this Corporate Plan is rolled forward next year. 

This Corporate Plan: 

• identifies the main challenges facing the county and the Council 

• reviews what has been achieved over the past 18 months 

• makes clear the Council’s priorities for the future 

• sets out the improvements in services and in efficiency and effectiveness which 
are planned 

• identifies the main risks to the achievement of the Plan 

• shows how the Council’s resources – human, financial, organisational and 
physical (including information and communications technologies - ICT) – will 
be deployed to bring about the planned improvements and manage the risks  

• is the Council’s strategic Best Value Plan and Improvement Plan 

• incorporates the objectives and targets in the Local Public Service Agreement 
(LPSA) between the Council and the UK Government [to be finalised once 
agreed with the Government]  

• is the basis for leading and managing the Council’s performance 

• is the basis for its individual directorate and service plans, and for the 
performance objectives and targets of every team and every individual member 
of staff 

1.3 Everything in the Plan is intended to help deliver the Council’s commitment to: 

• understanding the needs and wishes of service users and Council Tax-payers, 
and doing all it can to respond to them - so it takes into account the views 
expressed during the biggest public consultation the Council has ever 
undertaken 

• community leadership and working in partnership with all sectors 

• diversity and equal opportunities for all 

• a sustainable environment 

17



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

4 

2.0 Setting the Scene 

2.1 Herefordshire’s population is about 176,900. It is sparsely populated, with one of the 
five lowest county population densities in England.  About one-third of the 
population lives in Hereford City, a third in the market towns and a third in rural 
areas. 

2.2 Between 1991 and 2003 the population increased by 10.3%, primarily due to net 
inward migration into the county, mainly from other parts of the West Midlands and 
the South East. This rate of growth was faster than that experienced by the rest of 
the West Midlands (1.7%) and England and Wales (4%). 

2.3 Recent population movements have seen a considerable exodus from urban areas, 
mostly to recognisable villages within the immediate catchment of the main towns. 
Herefordshire has become a popular destination for the retired, for holiday homes 
and second homes and, in some areas, for out-of-county commuting. 

2.4 The county’s population has a considerably older age profile than that for England 
and Wales.  22.7% of the population is retired, compared with 18.5% nationally, and 
there are fewer persons of working age (58.5% compared with 61.8%).  Despite 
this, people are on average healthier than nationally. 

2.5  By 2011 the population is expected to grow by 3.1%, which is about the same as      
nationally.  However, the number of under 18s is expected to fall by 11.9% (national 
fall 4.2%); the number of 18 to 64 year-olds to grow by only 2.8% (4.4% 
nationally); and the number who are 65 and over to grow by 20.7% (10.2% 
nationally).  

2.6    Most dramatically, the number of people over 80 is expected to rise by a further 
24.4%, to 11,800 residents, compared with a national increase of 13%.        

2.7 Although the Government’s 2004 Index of Multiple Deprivation ranks Herefordshire 
192nd out of 354 local authorities, there are areas of poverty and deprivation within 
the county. Concentrations of the most deprived areas are within Hereford (South 
Wye and Central) and Leominster. Conversely, the least deprived areas are 
concentrated to the east of the county, in some of the fringes of Hereford and 
directly north and west of the city, and around Ross-on-Wye.  

2.6 Average wages in the county are significantly below both the regional and national 
averages. Average house prices are high compared with elsewhere in the region.   

2.7 Unemployment in the county is low. Manufacturing represents 19% of employment, 
with the service industry accounting for 75%; both agriculture and tourism are a 
more important source of jobs in the county than elsewhere in the West Midlands. 
Self-employment is more common in Herefordshire than in the rest of the UK. 

2.8 Although Herefordshire performs well at GCSE level, there are relatively few people 
in the workforce with higher-level skills. There is limited higher education provision, 
and knowledge-based industries are under-represented in the county. There is net 
out-migration of young adults from the county in search of wider opportunities for 
employment and higher education. 

18



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

5 

3.0 What the Council can do  

3.1 The Council has a wide range of powers and duties. These range from a general 
power to promote well-being to a host of specific legal obligations. These include 
such things as the provision of schools, the welfare of children and vulnerable 
adults, the safety of roads, waste collection and disposal, licensing and trading 
standards. 

3.2 This means that the Council has limited or no discretion in some areas but more in 
others.  

The challenges 

3.3 The biggest single area of the Council’s expenditure is school-age education, 
amounting to nearly half its annual recurrent spending. This expenditure is 
effectively ring-fenced by the Government, and most of it has to be passported to 
schools.  

3.4 The Government has published plans that would increase the amount of funding 
ring-fenced for schools and reduce it for some other services, such as roads. 

3.5 The Council has more, but still limited, discretion about its spending on Social Care, 
which accounts for about 20 per cent of its annual recurrent spending.  

3.6 It already targets its services on the most vulnerable.  Its responsibilities for the 
welfare of children are growing as a result of the new Children’s Act.  The 
disproportionate growth in the number of older people, particularly those over 80, 
will place significant additional demands on the Council. 

3.7 Pressures are increasing in other areas too. For instance: 

• spending has to rise to meet Government targets for the recycling of waste 

• the costs of petroleum-based products have risen sharply with the cost of oil. 
This has a particularly severe effect on rural counties, like Herefordshire, with 
scattered populations to serve and a huge road network to maintain 

• the Freedom of Information Act, which comes into effect from January 2005, 
requires the Council to devote more resources to responding quickly to public 
requests to see records 

3.8 These pressures will not be matched by increases in the Council’s budget:  

• outside education, the rate of increase in Government grant income (the 
biggest single source of the Council’s funding) will not be sufficient to match 
the increase in the Council’s unavoidable spending commitments 

• one-off funding of major projects by the European Union and other external 
sources are coming to an end 

19



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

6 

• in view of the high number of people living on fixed and low incomes, and the 
Government’s rules on capping, the Council cannot make up the deficit by 
increasing Council Tax to the levels that would be required 

• whilst the Council will continue to borrow prudently, this must only be done 
where it would produce long-term affordable benefits  

3.9 In the first year of the Corporate Plan (2005-06), the Council estimates that, to 
continue running its current services in the way they are now and to meet 
unavoidable new commitments , the deficit could be some £5 million. This would be 
likely to rise in subsequent years.  

The Council’s response  

3.10 The Council will continue to campaign, with other rural local authorities, for a fairer 
deal. That will not come quickly, if at all; until it does, the Council will take decisive 
action to live within its means and ensure the affordability of this Corporate Plan. 

3.11 Its strategy to do so will involve: 

• projections of grant from central Government and other sources of income, 
including moderate increases in Council Tax  

• assessing unavoidable spending pressures, including inflation, ring-fenced 
education expenditure and the statutory minimum provision of services 

• a balanced budget each year  

• a comprehensive Service Improvement Programme (SIP) that will raise service 
standards and produce significant efficiency savings. This will include services 
such as schools and social care, where greater efficiency will pay at least part of 
the costs of improving these services 

• cash-releasing savings of at least £2 million in 2005-06, and more in future 
years, from the SIP and more effective procurement of the goods and services 
we buy; 

• a further £3 million of recurrent savings, beginning in 2005-06, by re-prioritising 
services 

• targeted growth in priority services and essential infrastructure that will deliver 
service improvements and greater efficiency  

• prudent, long-term affordable borrowing that delivers service improvements 
and greater efficiency, in addition to maintaining the Council’s assets 

20



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

7 

4.0 Performance April 2003 – December 2004 

4.1 The Council is building its plan for the next 3 years on a record of major 
improvements in services and the way it operates. 

 Improved Services 

• Leominster Access Road – work began on the access road connecting the A49 
to Leominster’s soon-to-be-created £20m business park, a joint project between 
the Council and Advantage West Midlands, which is expected to create 600 
jobs. 

• Herefordshire Transport – the Government rated Herefordshire as a top 
performing authority in the delivery of local transport improvements, attracting 
an extra £1.2m for the service in 2004-05. 

• Rural Transport Partnership – nearly £400,000 was attracted into the county to 
develop transport services through a number of projects, including a new 
community car scheme and a project to improve access to mental health 
services. 

• Supporting People – the £7.5m programme, a working partnership between the 
Council’s Social Care & Strategic Housing Directorate, the West Mercia 
Probation Service and the Herefordshire Primary Care Trust, aimed at providing 
housing related support for vulnerable people - was rated as “Good” by the 
Audit Commission. 

• Opening of the Hillside Centre, Hereford – providing intermediate care in 
partnership with the Primary Care Trust 

• Introduction of the STARRS service – additional Council investment to provide 
community-based rehabilitation for older people  

• Jarvis Contract Signed – a long-term deal between the Council and Jarvis was 
signed, one of the first Strategic Delivery Partnerships to be established in the 
UK. The new company, Herefordshire Jarvis Services, should produce annual 
savings of £75,000. 

• Postal Ballot Success – 50% more voters used their voice at local elections last 
year. A response rate of 58.3% was achieved through the postal ballot, 
compared to the 36.8% turnout when the county last went to the ballot boxes 
for a local election in May 2000. 

• CCTV Launch – working with West Mercia Constabulary, the new control room 
was launched, monitoring Hereford, Leominster and Ross-on-Wye. 

• Completion of new school buildings for Lea and Cradley Primary Schools. 

• The Bromyard Centre – hosting a brand new library, Tourist Information 
Centre, INFO in Herefordshire, halo Leisure and Learndirect. 

21



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

8 

• Bridge Sollers Bridge – the replacement bridge was completed on schedule and 
officially opened on 31st March  

• Asset Management Plan – in the Government’s assessment, the Council scored 
42 out of 43 for the way its extensive property estate is managed. 

• Recycling pilot starts – the kerbside/backdoor collection of recyclables was 
expanded, with 56% of Herefordshire’s population covered by the scheme. 

 External Assessment 

• Comprehensive Performance Assessment – following re-assessment 
during Autumn 2003, the Council maintained its ‘Good’ status awarded by the 
Audit Commission in 2002. 

The Audit Commission bases its annual assessment on how well Council 
services have performed during the year. The following scorecard shows how 
they considered the Council’s services to have performed: 

 

[Add to diagram and text below full 2004 assessment results, when 
available] 

 

• Social Services Performance – in the annual social services performance 
ratings for 2003, the assessment concluded that Services for Children were 
serving most people well, and Services for Adults were serving some people 
well.  As an overall score, the Directorate was assessed, on a scale of zero to 
three stars, as delivering a two-star service.  In 2004, the assessment 
concluded that Services for Children are serving some people well, and have 
promising prospects; and that Services for Adults have improved to being seen 

0 1 2 3 4

Use of Resources

Benefits

Libraries & Leisure

Housing

Environment

Social Care (children)

Social Care (adults)

Education
2002

2003

22



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

9 

as having promising prospects.  This has resulted in these services as a whole 
being assessed as one-star.   

• Strategic Housing Assessment – the service maintained its “Excellent” Audit 
Commission rating  in 2004.     

• Audit and Inspection Annual Letter – the overall assessment was that the 
Council’s financial standing was sound, recognising that improvements had 
been made to revenue and capital budgeting, and that the Council had a good 
record of delivering against financial targets. 

• The Community – every 3 years each local authority carries out a survey of 
people in its area to seek their views on the Council and its services. The first 
survey was conducted in 2000, and another was carried out in autumn 2003.  

The community’s overall perceptions of individual Council services improved 
between surveys, with particular rises in levels of satisfaction achieved in 
Environmental Services, including waste disposal and recycling.  

Paradoxically, but in line with a national decline in public satisfaction with local 
authorities, satisfaction with the Council overall fell to 48%, from 59% in 2000. 

Performance against Best Value Performance Indicators 

4.2 A further measure of the Council’s performance is against performance indicators 
that measure people’s experience of services, cost and quality.  Many of these are 
set by the Government.  In 2003-04, the Council improved or maintained its 
performance against 62% of these indicators, compared to 59% in the previous 
year. 

 Improvement Plan Review 

4.3 To improve its overall effectiveness and efficiency, since 2002 the Council has been 
implementing a three-year Improvement Plan. 

4.4 Good progress has been made: 

Leadership and 
Vision 

z Introduction of a comprehensive corporate planning process, 
driving priorities and performance management.  

z Service plans for 2004-05 have been reviewed and new 
guidance developed to ensure they deliver the Corporate Plan 

z Diversity impact assessments of services and policies have 
started. 

Performance 
Management 

z Validation systems developed for Best Value Performance 
Indicators. 

z Management competencies evaluated and roll-out started. 

Key Resources z Strategic programmes and projects reviewed, with training in 
project management. 

23



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

10 

z Revised Risk Management Strategy approved. 

z Procurement Strategy reviewed. 

z Property Review completed. 

z Edgar Street Grid proposals incorporated in the Unitary 
Development Plan. 

z Flexible working pilot underway in Revenues and Benefits. 

Organisational 
Development 
and Learning 

z Reduction in sickness absence. 

z Learning and good practice continues to be shared through 
groups, including the Managers’ Forum, Performance Leads 
and Performance Co-ordinators, the Diversity Group and the 
Race Equality Group 

z Training rolled-out to managers and key individuals to ensure 
a consistent approach, in areas such as  Freedom of 
Information and Impact Assessments.  

Communications z Roadshows, open meetings and work shadowing undertaken 
throughout the authority. 

z Customer Service Strategy agreed and launched. 

z Community Involvement Strategy approved. 

z New programme of Local Area Forums. 

24



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

11 

5.0 Priorities  

5.1 The Council’s top priorities for the period of this Plan are: 

• to maximise the health, safety, economic well-being, achievements 
and contribution of every child, including those with special needs and 
those in care 

• to build on the already strong performance of the county’s schools and continue 
to improve the achievement of pupils 

• to enable vulnerable adults to live independently and, in particular, to 
enable many more older people to continue to live in their own homes 

• to meet Government targets for the recycling of waste and the reduction of 
carbon emissions 

• to improve the safety of roads, reducing further the numbers of people 
killed or seriously injured  

• to provide more efficient, effective and customer-focused services for 
communities, including clean streets  

• to promote diversity and community harmony and strive for equal 
opportunities for all the people of Herefordshire, regardless of race, religion, 
disability, sex, sexual orientation, income or age 

• to develop its community leadership role, working with partners to achieve 
the Herefordshire Plan Ambitions and, in particular, deliver the Local Public 
Service Agreement (LPSA) with the Government 

5.2 To make these things possible, the Council’s organisational priorities are: 

• to streamline its processes, assets and management structures, and secure 
significant efficiency savings, so as to keep down Council Tax increases and 
invest in priority service improvements 

• to ensure that its essential assets, including schools, other buildings, roads 
and information and communications (ICT) infrastructure, are in the right 
condition for the long-term cost-effective delivery of services 

• better to understand the needs and preferences of service users and 
Council Tax-payers, and to tailor services accordingly 

• to recruit, retain and motivate high quality staff, ensuring that they are 
trained and developed so as to maximise their ability and performance 

• to embed corporate planning, performance management and project 
management systems so as to continue to drive up service standards and 
efficiency  

25



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

12 

6.0 Identifying and Managing Risk 

6.1 The Council has a comprehensive approach to the identification and management of 
the risks it faces. The main risks to particular services and major projects, and how 
the Council intends to manage them, are identified in the Action Plan that follows 
below.  

6.2 All risks are recorded and monitored by means of a corporate register. Details for 
2005-06 will be included in the Annual Operating Plan and in directorate and service 
plans. 

 Overarching risks 

6.3 A number of risks have the potential to affect the Council as a whole and to have 
direct or indirect impacts on all its services. These are financial, reputational and 
in respect of its organisation, staff and systems.  These categories of risk often 
overlap and interact one upon the other. 

Financial 

6.4 The Council faces major risks in respect of the level of resources available to it to 
provide services, the maintenance of a balanced budget and the effective and 
efficient use of resources.  

6.5 The UK Government is placing tight constraints on local authority spending 
generally, at the same time as requiring councils to take on additional responsibilities 
and setting more demanding service targets. These bear disproportionately on rural 
authorities because of the extra costs of providing services to sparse populations.  

6.6 The impact falls especially hard on Herefordshire Council, as an authority that 
receives a much lower than average Government grant per head of population.  

6.7 The Council will manage these risks by: 

• continuing to make the case to Government for a fairer deal, including the full 
use of up-to-date Census figures in the calculation of grant  

• ensuring that, whatever the level of resources realistically likely to be available, 
its forward plans are affordable 

• rigorous and robust systems of internal control, including in-year financial and 
performance monitoring and management, and a carefully targeted audit 
programme  

• an accelerated major programme of efficiency savings, including by: 

- getting better value from the goods and services the Council procures 

- rationalising property holdings and lowering the costs of using them 

- the Service Improvement Programme (SIP), to make savings and improve 
services to users  

26



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

13 

• reviewing priorities and focusing resources on what’s most important. This will 
mean reducing some services, as others grow. 

Reputational 

6.8 The Council must ensure that it has a good reputation with the people of 
Herefordshire, with partner organisations and with the UK Government. This is at 
risk in view of the financial and service challenges described above, and the ever-
higher standards demanded by the Audit Commission and the other Government-led 
inspectorates. 

6.9 The Council will manage these risks by: 

• explaining to the public and partner organisations, candidly and in plain English, 
the issues the Council faces  

• consulting the public and partners fully about the major choices it has to make, 
taking their views into account before making them, and explaining the reasons 
for its decisions 

• demonstrating that it is as efficient and effective as it can be, by means of its 
ambitious and continuous programme of efficiency savings and service 
improvement 

• consolidating and building on its Improvement Programme, drawn up following 
the Corporate Performance Assessment (CPA) in 2002 

• continuing the targeted improvement of individual services to achieve and 
maintain the highest possible CPA scores  

• intensifying its focus on serving its customers, and testing through regular 
surveys and the monitoring of complaints and compliments, levels of customer 
satisfaction with the Council as a whole and with individual services 

•  implementing the Freedom of Information Act, at the same time as continuing 
to comply with data protection legislation 

• rolling out its comprehensive programme of diversity impact assessments and 
ensuring that its Race Equality Scheme and action plan reflect best practice 

• working with other organisations to achieve common goals for the people of 
Herefordshire, particularly by means of agreeing objectives and targets for the 
rolled forward Herefordshire Plan 

•  maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance, propriety, integrity 
and impartiality 

 Organisation, staff and systems 

6.10 The Council has embarked on a major programme of organisational change and 
development.  This is designed to deliver better services, meet new statutory and 
regulatory requirements, and improve its efficiency. 

27



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

14 

6.11 It is of paramount importance that the Council rises successfully to the challenge of 
implementing the Children’s Act, which will mean working in new ways across 
traditional service boundaries.   

6.12 But this must be achieved at the same time as continuing to deliver to a high 
standard its other priorities and essential services; and do so with fewer staff, 
working in new structures, new management relationships and streamlined business 
processes.  And it must have a high quality, motivated workforce, many members of 
which are coming to terms with the prospect of reduced salaries following job 
evaluation. 

6.13 Underpinning the service and organisational improvements, there must be highly 
efficient and effective ICT: the Council’s current systems need major up-grading and 
will require significant investment. 

6.14 Organisational change and development of this scale and range is a huge challenge, 
with high inherent risks of failure.   

6.15 The Council will manage these risks by means of: 

• setting clear strategies, objectives, targets and timetables for all elements, taking 
into account  their interactions one upon the other 

• PRINCE 2 project management, with each project led by the relevant members of 
Cabinet and  the Chief Executive’s Management Team   

• having a designated lead Cabinet member and Director for Children’s Services 

• devoting dedicated staff resources to drive the programme and to safeguard 
affected areas during the transition period to fully operational new structures  

• a  Pay and Workforce Strategy, including support for staff and comprehensive 
training and development opportunities linked to the Council’s objectives 

•  regular monitoring by the Chief Executive’s Management Team and Cabinet of the 
overall programme and the individual elements, leading to vigorous action 
wherever necessary 

• regular reports on the progress of the overall programme and the individual 
elements to the Strategic Monitoring Committee and the relevant subject 
committees. 

28



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

15 

7.0 The Action Plan 

7.1 The pages that follow set out what the Council plans do to achieve its service and 
organisational priorities, including the LPSA.  

7.2 Part One – Making a reality of the Herefordshire Plan: service targets - 
shows what the Council intends to do to fulfil its contribution to achieving the ten 
Ambitions of the Herefordshire Partnership. 

7.3 Part Two - Making it happen through greater customer focus and 
organisational improvement – shows what the Council intends to do to the way 
it operates to deliver better, more cost-effective services to users and Council Tax-
payers. 

7.4 Not least because the biggest single source of the Council’s funding – grant from the 
UK Government – is determined annually and outside the Council’s control, the 
intentions set out in this Plan will be kept under review. The Plan will be up-dated 
and rolled forward annually so that it always looks forward three years. 

7.5 It is, nonetheless, clear from the Government’s indicative plans for the period of this 
Plan, which were published in July 2004, that there will continue to be low levels of 
increase in Government grants to local authorities relative to those in recent years. 
It is also apparent that the lion’s share of real growth will be in the ring-fenced 
schools budget. The Government has also said that it expects annual percentage 
increases in Council Tax to be in low single figures. 

7.6 Even with the Council’s commitment to making cumulative annual efficiency savings 
of at least 2.5 percent, the effect will be increasingly severe constraints on service 
budgets apart from education, many of which are likely to decline in real terms.  

7.7 The details of what the Council will do in the first year of this Corporate Plan will be 
set out in its Annual Operating Plan 2005-06, which will be published in March 
2005. This will include the budgets, targets and actions for individual services and 
organisational programmes. 

7.8 Information on the Council’s budgets and income is given in Appendices 1 – 5. [to 
be added] 

7.9 The relationship of the various plans is shown in Appendix 6.  

29



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

16
 

Pa
rt

 O
ne

 –
 M

ak
in

g 
a 

re
al

it
y 

of
 t

he
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 P
la

n:
 s

er
vi

ce
 t

ar
ge

ts
  

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
m

bi
ti

on
: 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d 
w

el
lb

ei
n

g 
of

 H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

pe
op

le
 

Re
du

ci
ng

 d
ea

th
s 

fr
om

 h
ea

rt
 d

is
ea

se
, 

st
ro

ke
 a

nd
 c

an
ce

r 
by

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

sm
ok

in
g 

Cl
lr 

Ru
le

 
M

r 
D

un
hi

ll 
9.

00
%

 
%

 o
f 

11
-1

5 
ye

ar
 

ol
ds

 s
m

ok
in

g 
1+

 
ci

ga
re

tt
es

 p
er

 w
ee

k

10
.0

0%
1 

 P
ro

m
ot

e 
"P

ro
of

 
of

 A
ge

" 
ca

rd
; 

2 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 &

 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
ac

tiv
ity

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 
sa

le
 o

f 
to

ba
cc

o;
 3

 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 

ag
en

ci
es

 

1 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

no
t 

si
gn

in
g-

up
 t

o 
sc

he
m

e 
&

 
tr

ad
er

s 
no

t 
ha

vi
ng

 
"d

ue
 d

ili
ge

nc
e"

 
pr

oc
es

se
s;

 2
 

In
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 
de

te
rr

en
ts

; 
3 

Ke
y 

ag
en

ci
es

 n
ot

 
en

ga
ge

d 

1 
Fo

cu
s 

pr
om

ot
io

na
l w

or
k 

on
 1

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 

sc
ho

ol
 n

ot
 s

ig
ne

d-
up

; 
2 

Pr
io

rit
is

in
g 

w
or

k 
to

 f
oc

us
 o

n 
se

lle
rs

 o
f 

"a
ge

-
re

st
ric

te
d 

go
od

s"
; 

3 
Fo

rm
al

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 
M

ag
is

tr
at

es
 

H
ea

lth
y 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p;

  
pr

oo
f 

of
 a

ge
 s

ch
em

e;
 

Tr
ad

in
g 

St
an

da
rd

s 
Te

am
 

H
el

pi
ng

 o
ld

er
 

pe
op

le
 t

o 
re

m
ai

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 B
ar

ne
tt

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

Su
pp

or
ti

n
g 

pe
op

le
 t

o 
liv

e 
in

de
pe

n
de

n
tl

y 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

pe
op

le
 a

ge
d 

65
 a

nd
 

ov
er

 h
el

pe
d 

to
 li

ve
 

at
 h

om
e,

 p
er

 1
00

0 
ad

ul
ts

 a
ge

d 
65

 a
nd

 
ov

er
 

 
1 

Re
du

ce
 t

he
 

w
ai

tin
g 

tim
es

 f
or

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
an

d 
ca

re
 p

ac
ka

ge
s 

&
 

in
cr

ea
se

 d
ire

ct
 

pa
ym

en
ts

; 
2 

Tr
ad

in
g 

St
an

da
rd

s 
"D

oo
rs

te
p 

Cr
im

e"
 

ca
m

pa
ig

n;
 3

 
Pr

om
ot

e 
us

e 
of

 
Si

gn
po

st
in

g 
Sc

he
m

e 
w

ith
in

 C
ou

nc
il 

&
 

ot
he

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 

2 
Fa

ilu
re

 t
o 

ap
pr

ec
ia

te
 e

ff
ec

t 
on

 
th

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
; 

3 
La

ck
 o

f 
ta

ke
-u

p 
of

 
Si

gn
po

st
in

g 
sc

he
m

e

St
af

fin
g 

 Bu
dg

et
 c

on
tr

ol
 

D
at

a 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

2 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p;

 3
 

Ac
tiv

e 
su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
&

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 

Si
gn

po
st

in
g 

Sc
he

m
e

Re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

an
d 

re
te

nt
io

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

Bu
dg

et
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

cl
in

ic
s 

N
ew

 C
lie

nt
 I

nd
ex

 
sy

st
em

 

 

2 
Tr

ad
in

g 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Te
am

; 
3 

Si
gn

po
st

in
g 

Co
or

di
na

to
r 

ST
AA

R
S 

se
rv

ic
e 

Ex
tr

a 
ca

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
of

fic
er

s 

30



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

17
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
ot

he
rs

 Cl
lr 

M
rs

 B
ar

ne
tt

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

Su
pp

or
ti

n
g 

pe
op

le
 t

o 
liv

e 
in

de
pe

n
de

n
tl

y 

Ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 

a)
ph

ys
ic

al
  

b)
le

ar
ni

ng
  

c)
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

he
lp

ed
 

to
 li

ve
 a

t 
ho

m
e 

pe
r 

10
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ag
ed

 1
8-

64
  
 

   

a)
 3

.4
 

b)
 2

.5
 

c)
 1

.8
 

 

a)
Be

st
 V

al
ue

 
R
ev

ie
w

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

/S
en

so
ry

 
Im

pa
irm

en
t 

Re
vi

ew

b)
Im

pr
ov

ed
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t/
ne

w
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

to
ol

s 

 c)
Co

-lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

jo
in

t 
se

rv
ic

e/
ex

pa
nd

 
de

lib
er

at
e 

se
lf-

ha
rm

 
se

rv
ic

e/
ex

pa
nd

 
ea

rly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
ca

re
rs

’ 
su

pp
or

t 

St
af

fin
g 

Bu
dg

et
 c

on
tr

ol
 

D
at

a 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

 

Re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

an
d 

re
te

nt
io

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

Bu
ge

t 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

cl
in

ic
s 

N
ew

 c
lie

nt
 in

de
x 

sy
st

em
 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

- 
Ad

ul
ts

 D
iv

is
io

n 

 b)
 a

nd
 c

) 
-

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

Bo
ar

ds
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
fic

er
 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
ot

he
rs

 Cl
lr 

M
rs

 B
ar

ne
tt

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

Fa
ir

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 

ca
re

 a
n

d 
su

pp
or

t

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

r 
re

vi
ew

s 
w

hi
ch

 le
ad

 
to

 a
 s

er
vi

ce
 b

ei
ng

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

      

53
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 

O
ff

ic
er

s 

St
af

fin
g 

 Bu
dg

et
 c

on
tr

ol
 

 D
at

a 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

Re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

an
d 

re
te

nt
io

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

 Bu
dg

et
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

cl
in

ic
s 

N
ew

 C
lie

nt
 I

nd
ex

 
sy

st
em

 

 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

– 
Ad

ul
ts

 D
iv

is
io

n 

31



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

18
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
ot

he
rs

 Cl
lr 

M
rs

 B
ar

ne
tt

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

in
cl

u
si

on
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

ot
h

er
s 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

ad
ul

ts
 a

nd
 o

ld
er

 
pe

op
le

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 

di
re

ct
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 a
t 

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ag

ed
 1

8 
ye

ar
s 

or
 

ov
er

 

20
0 

D
ed

ic
at

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 

re
so

ur
ce

 
St

af
fin

g 

Bu
dg

et
 c

on
tr

ol
 

D
at

a 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

Re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

an
d 

re
te

nt
io

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

Bu
dg

et
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

cl
in

ic
s 

N
ew

 C
lie

nt
 I

nd
ex

 
sy

st
em

 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

– 
Ad

ul
ts

 D
iv

is
io

n 

 
Cl

lr 
M

rs
 B

ar
ne

tt
 

M
s 

Fi
en

ne
s 

TB
D

 
P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
in

cl
u

si
on

 t
h

ro
u

gh
 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
ot

h
er

s 

 Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

in
fo

rm
al

 c
ar

er
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
an

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
or

 
re

vi
ew

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 

cl
ie

nt
s 

an
d 

ca
re

rs
 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

r 
re

vi
ew

s 

25
 

Fu
rt

he
r 

em
be

dd
in

g 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

St
af

fin
g 

 Bu
dg

et
 c

on
tr

ol
 

 D
at

a 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

Re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

an
d 

re
te

nt
io

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

 Bu
dg

et
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

cl
in

ic
s 

N
ew

 C
lie

nt
 I

nd
ex

 
sy

st
em

 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

– 
Ad

ul
ts

 D
iv

is
io

n 

32



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

19
 

 
Th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
P

la
n

 t
o 

2
0

1
1

 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
m

bi
ti

on
: 

R
ed

u
ce

 c
ri

m
e 

&
 d

is
or

de
r 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
sa

fe
r 

To
 r

ed
uc

e 
al

co
ho

l 
re

la
te

d 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

di
so

rd
er

 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
s 

Fi
en

ne
s 

TB
D

 
Vi

ol
en

t 
of

fe
nc

es
 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 in

 a
 

pu
bl

ic
 p

la
ce

 p
er

 
1,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n 

TB
D

 
TB

D
 

TB
D

 
TB

D
 

CC
TV

 

To
 r

ed
uc

e 
al

co
ho

l 
re

la
te

d 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

di
so

rd
er

 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
s 

Fi
en

ne
s 

TB
D

 
Vi

ol
en

t 
of

fe
nc

es
 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
in

flu
en

ce
 p

er
 

1,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

TB
D

 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

ne
w

 
lic

en
si

ng
 r

eg
im

e;
 

pr
oo

f 
of

 a
ge

 
sc

he
m

e;
 a

dv
is

or
y 

&
 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

ac
tiv

ity
 w

ith
 r

eg
ar

ds
 

to
 "

ag
e-

re
st

ric
te

d 
pr

od
uc

ts
" 

Sa
le

 o
f 

"a
ge

-
re

st
ric

te
d 

pr
od

uc
ts

" 
no

t 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

Pr
io

rit
is

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 

an
d 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

ac
tiv

ity
 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
Te

am
, 

CC
TV

, T
ra

di
ng

 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Te
am

 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 p

ub
lic

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 t

he
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f 

do
m

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
an

d 
vi

ct
im

s’
 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 in

 t
he

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 

re
po

rt
in

g 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 B
ar

ne
tt

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

do
m

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
re

fu
ge

 p
la

ce
s 

pe
r 

10
,0

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
or

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 

TB
D

 
TB

D
 

TB
D

 
TB

D
 

TB
D

 

N
ot

e:
 a

 C
ri

m
e 

&
 D

is
or

de
r 

A
u

di
t 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 u

n
de

rt
ak

en
 a

n
d 

a 
st

ra
te

gy
 (

in
cl

u
di

n
g 

m
ea

su
re

s 
&

 t
ar

ge
ts

) 
fo

r 
th

e 
pe

ri
od

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 P
la

n
 is

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 t

o 
be

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

5
. T

h
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

 t
o 

th
is

 A
m

bi
ti

on
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

5
  

33



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

20
 

 
Th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
P

la
n

 t
o 

2
0

1
1

 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
m

bi
ti

on
: 

R
ed

u
ce

 p
ov

er
ty

 a
n

d 
is

ol
at

io
n

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
R
ai

si
ng

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 in

cl
us

io
n 

is
su

es
 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
rs

 J
on

es
 

TB
D

 
N

um
be

r 
of

 r
ac

ia
l 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
re

co
rd

ed
 

by
 t

he
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

pe
r 

10
0,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n

TB
D

 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

Ra
ce

 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
Sc

he
m

e 
&

 
ne

w
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

sy
st

em
 

Ac
tio

n 
by

 t
he

 C
RE

 
Fu

lly
 im

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

R
ac

e 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
Sc

he
m

e 

R
ac

e 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
G

ro
up

 

R
ai

si
ng

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 in

cl
us

io
n 

is
su

es
 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
rs

 J
on

es
 

10
0%

 
Th

e 
%

 o
f 

ra
ci

al
 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
th

at
 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 f

ur
th

er
 

ac
tio

n 

10
0%

 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

Ra
ce

 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
Sc

he
m

e 
&

 
ne

w
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

sy
st

em
 

Ac
tio

n 
by

 t
he

 C
RE

 
Fu

lly
 im

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

R
ac

e 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
Sc

he
m

e 

R
ac

e 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
G

ro
up

 

Ta
ck

lin
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
of

 s
oc

ia
l e

xc
lu

si
on

 
in

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 

Cl
lr 

M
ay

so
n 

M
rs

 J
on

es
 

TB
D

 
%

 o
f 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

fin
di

ng
 it

 e
as

y 
to

 
ac

ce
ss

 a
 lo

ca
l s

ho
p;

 
a 

su
pe

rm
ar

ke
t;

 a
 

po
st

 o
ff

ic
e;

 a
 

do
ct

or
; 

a 
lo

ca
l 

ho
sp

ita
l; 

a 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

e;
 p

ub
lic

 
tr

an
sp

or
t;

 s
ho

p 
se

lli
ng

 f
re

sh
 f

ru
it 

&
 

ve
ge

ta
bl

es
; 

ch
em

is
t/

ph
ar

m
ac

y;
 

ba
nk

/c
as

h 
po

in
t;

 
lib

ra
ry

; 
sp

or
ts

/le
is

ur
e 

ce
nt

re
; 

co
un

ci
l 

of
fic

e;
 

cu
ltu

ra
l/r

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

fa
ci

lit
y 

86
%

; 
79

%
; 

82
%

; 
77

%
; 

56
%

; 
81

%
; 

75
%

; 
80

%
; 

77
%

; 
73

%
; 

69
%

; 
66

%
; 

60
%

; 
53

%
 

M
ap

 n
ee

ds
 (

us
in

g 
Pa

ris
h 

Pl
an

s)
 t

o 
in

fo
rm

 p
rio

rit
ie

s;
 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

En
te

rp
ris

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t;

 
af

fil
ia

tio
n 

to
 V

iR
SA

; 
an

nu
al

 t
ra

in
in

g 
ev

en
t 

fo
r 

ru
ra

l 
sh

op
s;

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

fu
nd

in
g 

m
ob

ile
 &

 
ou

tr
ea

ch
 s

er
vi

ce
s;

 
su

pp
or

t 
ac

tio
ns

 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 p

ar
is

h 
pl

an
s 

Re
du

ce
d 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
&

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r 

m
ay

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 &

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

3-
ye

ar
 c

om
m

itm
en

t 
to

 a
gr

ee
d 

le
ve

l o
f 

su
pp

or
t 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 &

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
di

vi
si

on
 

34



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

21
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

Co
m

ba
tin

g 
po

ve
rt

y 
Cl

lr 
M

rs
 B

ar
ne

tt
 

M
s 

Fi
en

ne
s 

TB
D

 
Th

e 
to

ta
l a

nn
ua

l 
va

lu
e 

(£
) 

of
 

ad
di

tio
na

l b
en

ef
it 

cl
ai

m
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

dv
ic

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

fr
om

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

£3
.5

m
 

Pr
ov

id
e 

W
el

fa
re

 
Ri

gh
ts

 A
dv

ic
e;

 
su

pp
or

t 
us

e 
of

 t
he

 
Si

gn
po

st
in

g 
Sc

he
m

e;
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 t
he

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 W

or
k 

&
 P

en
si

on
s 

"L
in

ka
ge

" 
sc

he
m

e 

1 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
de

m
an

d;
 2

 c
ha

ng
es

 
to

 b
en

ef
its

 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n;
 3

 
lo

ss
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

1 
se

ek
 e

xt
er

na
l 

fu
nd

in
g 

&
 

pa
rt

ne
rin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
; 

2 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

fo
cu

s 
on

 
be

ne
fit

s 
ta

ke
-u

p;
 3

 
co

nt
in

ue
 s

up
po

rt
 

fo
r 

Si
gn

po
st

in
g 

Sc
he

m
e 

W
el

fa
re

 R
ig

ht
s 

Te
am

; 
R
ev

en
ue

s 
&

 
Be

ne
fit

s 
Te

am
s;

 
Si

gn
po

st
in

g 
Sc

he
m

e 

35



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

22
 

 
Th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
P

la
n

 t
o 

2
0

1
1

 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
m

bi
ti

on
: 

En
co

u
ra

ge
 c

om
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 s
h

ap
e 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

in
 t

he
 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
rs

 J
on

es
 

40
%

 
%

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

Vo
ic

e 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 f

ee
l t

ha
t 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l d

oe
s 

en
ou

gh
 t

o 
gi

ve
 lo

ca
l 

pe
op

le
 t

he
 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 t

o 
in

flu
en

ce
 im

po
rt

an
t 

de
ci

si
on

s 

30
%

 
R
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 &

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 

A 
la

ck
 o

f 
co

rp
or

at
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

pp
ro

ac
h

Pl
an

ne
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 &
 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
re

so
ur

ce
d 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 c

ov
er

in
g 

al
l 

ar
ea

s 
of

 t
he

 
Co

un
ci

l's
 w

or
k 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 &

 
M

em
be

r 
Se

rv
ic

es
; 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Te

am
; 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t 

Co
or

di
na

to
r 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
rs

 J
on

es
 

40
%

 
%

 o
f 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 
ag

ed
 1

3-
19

 w
ho

 
fe

el
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l 

do
es

 e
no

ug
h 

to
 

gi
ve

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 t
o 

in
flu

en
ce

 im
po

rt
an

t 
de

ci
si

on
s 

30
%

 
R
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 &

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 

A 
la

ck
 o

f 
co

rp
or

at
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

pp
ro

ac
h

Pl
an

ne
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 &
 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
re

so
ur

ce
d 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 c

ov
er

in
g 

al
l 

ar
ea

s 
of

 t
he

 
Co

un
ci

l's
 w

or
k 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 &

 
M

em
be

r 
Se

rv
ic

es
; 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Te

am
; 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t 

Co
or

di
na

to
r;

 Y
ou

th
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
r 

Pr
in

gl
e 

TB
D

 
%

 o
f 

se
at

s 
w

he
re

 
tw

o 
or

 f
ew

er
 

ca
nd

id
at

es
 s

to
od

 
fo

r 
el

ec
tio

n 
at

 t
he

 
la

st
 lo

ca
l e

le
ct

io
ns

 

TB
D

 
Re

vi
ew

 t
he

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 &

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 

A 
la

ck
 o

f 
co

rp
or

at
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

pp
ro

ac
h

Pl
an

ne
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 &
 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
re

so
ur

ce
d 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 c

ov
er

in
g 

al
l 

ar
ea

s 
of

 t
he

 
Co

un
ci

l's
 w

or
k 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 &

 
M

em
be

r 
Se

rv
ic

es
; 

el
ec

to
ra

l 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
Te

am
; 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Te

am
; 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t 

Co
or

di
na

to
r 

36



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

23
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
r 

Pr
in

gl
e 

TB
D

 
%

 o
f 

pa
ris

he
s 

un
co

nt
es

te
d 

in
 lo

ca
l 

el
ec

tio
ns

 

TB
D

 
Re

vi
ew

 t
he

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 &

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
 

A 
la

ck
 o

f 
co

rp
or

at
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

pp
ro

ac
h

Pl
an

ne
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 &
 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
re

so
ur

ce
d 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 c

ov
er

in
g 

al
l 

ar
ea

s 
of

 t
he

 
Co

un
ci

l's
 w

or
k 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 &

 
M

em
be

r 
Se

rv
ic

es
; 

El
ec

to
ra

l 
R
eg

is
tr

at
io

n 
Te

am
; 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Te

am
; 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t 

Co
or

di
na

to
r 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g 

Cl
lr 

M
ay

so
n 

M
rs

 J
on

es
 

TB
D

 
%

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

Vo
ic

e 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 s

at
is

fie
d 

w
ith

 t
he

ir 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

s 
a 

pl
ac

e 
to

 li
ve

 

85
%

 
Su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
Pa

ris
h 

Pl
an

s;
 s

up
po

rt
 f

or
 

an
 a

ct
iv

e,
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
&

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r;

 
w

el
co

m
e 

pa
ck

s 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
nd

 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

lo
ca

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

 t
he

 
Pa

ris
h 

Pl
an

 p
ro

ce
ss

; 
re

du
ce

d 
su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

&
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

r 

Se
cu

rin
g 

ex
te

rn
al

 
fu

nd
in

g 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 &
 

Ec
on

om
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

D
iv

is
io

n 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g 

Cl
lr 

M
ay

so
n 

M
rs

 J
on

es
 

TB
D

 
%

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

Vo
ic

e 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 f

ee
l t

ha
t 

th
ei

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 h
as

 
be

co
m

e 
a 

be
tt

er
 

pl
ac

e 
to

 li
ve

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pa

st
 2

 y
ea

rs
 o

r 
st

ay
ed

 t
he

 s
am

e 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 t
ho

se
 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

re
si

de
nt

 in
 t

he
ir 

co
m

m
un

ity
 f

or
 le

ss
 

th
an

 2
 y

ea
rs

) 

75
%

 
Su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
Pa

ris
h 

Pl
an

s;
 s

up
po

rt
 f

or
 

an
 a

ct
iv

e,
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
&

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r;

 
w

el
co

m
e 

pa
ck

s 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
nd

 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

lo
ca

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

 t
he

 
Pa

ris
h 

Pl
an

 p
ro

ce
ss

; 
re

du
ce

d 
su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

&
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

r 

Se
cu

rin
g 

ex
te

rn
al

 
fu

nd
in

g 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 &
 

Ec
on

om
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

D
iv

is
io

n 

37



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

24
 

 
Th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
P

la
n

 t
o 

2
0

1
1

 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
m

bi
ti

on
: 

D
ev

el
op

 H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

as
 a

n
 a

ct
iv

e,
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

an
d 

en
jo

ya
bl

e 
pl

ac
e 

to
 b

e 
To

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 
cu

ltu
re

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

by
 b

re
ak

in
g 

do
w

n 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 t

o 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t,
 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

w
id

e-
ra

ng
e 

of
 n

ee
ds

 
an

d 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

Cl
lr 

St
oc

kt
on

 
M

rs
 J

on
es

 
TB

D
 

%
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 
us

e 
sp

or
ts

 a
nd

 
le

is
ur

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

at
 

le
as

t 
on

ce
 a

 m
on

th

27
%

 
R
ai

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 (

e.
g.

 
e-

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

);
 

im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 

(e
.g

. D
D

A)
 t

o 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s;

 b
rin

g 
ne

w
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
on

-s
tr

ea
m

 

Lo
ss

 o
f 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 

su
pp

or
t 

pl
an

ne
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

; 
co

m
pe

tit
io

n 
fr

om
 

ot
he

r 
se

ct
or

s;
 

un
ex

pe
ct

ed
 c

lo
su

re
 

of
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

Co
m

m
itm

en
t 

to
 

pr
ot

ec
t 

fu
nd

in
g;

 
su

pp
or

t 
&

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

ag
gr

es
si

ve
 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
by

 
fa

ci
lit

y 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

£1
.2

m
 (

20
04

-5
) 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 

cu
ltu

re
 a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
by

 b
re

ak
in

g 
do

w
n 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 t
o 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t,

 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
w

id
e-

ra
ng

e 
of

 n
ee

ds
 

an
d 

as
pi

ra
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 

Cl
lr 

St
oc

kt
on

 
M

rs
 J

on
es

 
40

%
 

%
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 
us

e 
lib

ra
rie

s 
at

 le
as

t 
on

ce
 a

 m
on

th
 

38
%

 
N

ew
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 
lib

ra
ry

 &
 I

N
FO

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
ns

; 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

m
ar

ke
tin

g,
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 o

n 
bo

ok
s 

&
 o

pe
ni

ng
 

ho
ur

s;
 r

ev
is

ed
 

m
ob

ile
 li

br
ar

y 
sc

he
du

le
s 

an
d 

ne
w

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 A
cc

es
s 

Po
in

t 
(C

AP
) 

ne
tw

or
k;

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

of
 

se
rv

ic
es

 

N
o 

ne
w

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 

or
 c

ap
ita

l 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

fr
om

 
ne

w
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 
se

rv
ic

es
 &

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

Ca
pi

ta
l f

in
an

ci
ng

; 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

ev
en

ue
 

bu
dg

et
 f

or
 b

oo
ks

; 
ER

D
F/

SR
B 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

CA
P 

ne
tw

or
k;

 
Li

br
ar

ie
s 

&
 I

N
FO

 
Te

am
 

38



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

25
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 

cu
ltu

re
 a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
by

 b
re

ak
in

g 
do

w
n 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 t
o 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t,

 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
w

id
e-

ra
ng

e 
of

 n
ee

ds
 

an
d 

as
pi

ra
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 

Cl
lr 

St
oc

kt
on

 
M

rs
 J

on
es

 
TB

D
 

%
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 
us

e 
m

us
eu

m
s 

or
 

ga
lle

rie
s 

at
 le

as
t 

on
ce

 e
ve

ry
 6

 
m

on
th

s 

28
%

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fr
ee

 a
t 

po
in

t 
of

 
en

tr
y;

 U
pd

at
e 

di
sp

la
ys

; 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 r
ai

se
 

aw
ar

en
es

s;
 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
&

 
ou

tr
ea

ch
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 
op

en
in

g 
ho

ur
s 

an
d/

or
 c

lo
su

re
 o

f 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s;

 R
ed

uc
ed

 
qu

al
ity

 f
or

 d
is

pl
ay

s;
 

La
ck

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

fo
r 

di
sp

la
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t;

 L
os

s 
of

 M
us

eu
m

 o
n 

th
e 

M
ov

e 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
cu

rr
en

t 
fu

nd
in

g;
 I

nv
es

t 
in

 
di

sp
la

ys
; 

Se
cu

re
 

ca
pi

ta
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t 
in

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t;

 
se

ek
 e

xt
er

na
l 

fu
nd

in
g 

H
er

ita
ge

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Te

am
 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 

cu
ltu

re
 a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
by

 b
re

ak
in

g 
do

w
n 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 t
o 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t,

 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
w

id
e-

ra
ng

e 
of

 n
ee

ds
 

an
d 

as
pi

ra
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 

Cl
lr 

St
oc

kt
on

 
M

rs
 J

on
es

 
TB

D
 

%
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 
us

e 
th

ea
tr

es
 o

r 
co

nc
er

t 
ha

lls
 a

t 
le

as
t 

on
ce

 e
ve

ry
 6

 
m

on
th

s 

36
%

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

Th
e 

Co
ur

ty
ar

d;
 r

un
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 o
f 

ar
ts

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
ed

uc
at

io
n;

 S
up

po
rt

 
&

ad
vi

se
 a

rt
s 

gr
ou

ps
 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 

en
te

rp
ris

es
; 

Pr
om

ot
e 

th
e 

Co
un

ty
 

to
 v

is
ito

rs
 

In
ad

eq
ua

te
 s

up
po

rt
 

fo
r 

Th
e 

Co
ur

ty
ar

d;
 

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 in

 t
he

 
co

re
 a

rt
s 

an
d 

to
ur

is
m

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
; 

Sh
or

t-
te

rm
 e

xt
er

na
l 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

pr
oj

ec
ts

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
cu

rr
en

t 
su

pp
or

t;
 M

ai
nt

ai
n 

cu
rr

en
t 

le
ve

l o
f 

fu
nd

in
g;

 D
ev

el
op

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

ith
 

m
in

im
um

 3
-y

ea
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

 

Ar
ts

 T
ea

m
 

39



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

26
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 

cu
ltu

re
 a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
by

 b
re

ak
in

g 
do

w
n 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 t
o 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t,

 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
w

id
e-

ra
ng

e 
of

 n
ee

ds
 

an
d 

as
pi

ra
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 

Cl
lr 

St
oc

kt
on

 
M

rs
 J

on
es

 
TB

D
 

%
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 
us

e 
pa

rk
s,

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

, p
la

y 
ar

ea
s 

&
 o

th
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 le
as

t 
on

ce
 a

 m
on

th
 

55
%

 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
gr

ow
th

 
th

ro
ug

h 
kn

ow
n 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
s 

&
 

pl
an

ne
d 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 

in
 U

D
P;

 g
re

at
er

 u
se

 
of

 S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 t

o 
se

cu
re

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

ga
in

 f
ro

m
 p

la
nn

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

; 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 h

ea
lth

 
&

 p
hy

si
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

 
ag

en
da

 

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
pa

rk
s;

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

de
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 
w

he
n 

th
ey

 f
ai

l t
o 

m
ee

t 
ne

w
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
es

 (
e.

g.
 

D
D

A)
; 

ris
e 

in
 a

nt
i-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 

Co
m

m
itm

en
t 

to
 

pr
ot

ec
t 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

pa
rk

s 
&

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

; 
gr

ow
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

r 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n;
 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

of
 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 

be
ha

vi
ou

r 
m

ea
su

re
s£1

m
 (

20
04

-5
) 

40



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

27
 

 
Th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
P

la
n

 t
o 

2
0

1
1

 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
m

bi
ti

on
: 

P
ro

te
ct

 a
n

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e'
s 

di
st

in
ct

iv
e 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
To

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
by

 
in

te
gr

at
in

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

is
su

es
 in

to
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 

Cl
lr 

Ed
w

ar
ds

 
M

r 
D

un
hi

ll 
60

%
 

%
 o

f 
al

l n
ew

 h
om

es
 

bu
ilt

 o
n 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
(b

ro
w

nf
ie

ld
) 

la
nd

 

60
%

 
Co

nt
ro

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 
bu

ilt
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 

Re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 s
ki

lle
d 

st
af

f 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

Pa
y 

&
 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 S

tr
at

eg
y

Pl
an

ni
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
&

 U
D

P 

To
 a

ch
ie

ve
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

by
 

in
te

gr
at

in
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
is

su
es

 in
to

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

Cl
lr 

Ed
w

ar
ds

 
M

r 
D

un
hi

ll 
11

 
CO

2 
em

is
si

on
s 

in
 

to
nn

es
 o

f 
ca

rb
on

 
di

ox
id

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 
pe

r 
he

ad
 o

f 
po

pu
la

tio
n/

ye
ar

 

11
.4

 
D

ev
el

op
 &

 
im

pl
em

en
t 

st
ra

te
gy

Ta
rg

et
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

im
po

se
d 

by
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

Se
tt

in
g 

&
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 
ou

r 
ow

n 
ta

rg
et

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
U

ni
t 

To
 f

os
te

r 
an

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
in

di
vi

du
al

 a
nd

 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

ns
 

up
on

 t
he

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 

Cl
lr 

Ed
w

ar
ds

 
M

r 
D

un
hi

ll 
85

%
 

%
 o

f 
sc

ho
ol

s 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 a
s 

ec
o-

sc
ho

ol
s 

75
%

 
Su

pp
or

t 
sc

ho
ol

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ad

vi
ce

, 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 &

 s
m

al
l 

gr
an

ts
 

In
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 s
ta

ff
 

tim
e 

&
 b

ud
ge

t 
R
eg

ul
ar

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
, 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
&

 a
ct

io
n 

by
 C

ab
in

et
 &

 C
XM

T 
le

ad
s 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

U
ni

t 

41



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

28
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

To
 f

os
te

r 
an

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
in

di
vi

du
al

 a
nd

 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

ns
 

up
on

 t
he

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 

Cl
lr 

Ed
w

ar
ds

 
M

r 
D

un
hi

ll 
0.

27
 

To
ta

l t
on

na
ge

 o
f 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

as
te

 
ar

is
in

g 
– 

%
 

re
cy

cl
ed

 &
 %

 
co

m
po

st
ed

 o
r 

tr
ea

te
d 

by
 

an
ae

ro
bi

c 
di

ge
st

io
n 

co
m

bi
ne

d 

0.
24

 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

W
as

te
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

St
ra

te
gy

 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 n

ot
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 

le
ga

l a
ct

io
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ac
tio

n 
as

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

W
as

te
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

, G
EM

, U
D

P 

To
 f

os
te

r 
an

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
in

di
vi

du
al

 a
nd

 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

ns
 

up
on

 t
he

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 

Cl
lr 

Ed
w

ar
ds

 
M

r 
D

un
hi

ll 
53

0.
8 

Kg
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 p
er

 
he

ad
 o

f 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

53
0.

8 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

W
as

te
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

St
ra

te
gy

 

Fa
ilu

re
 o

f 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ac
tio

n 
as

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

W
as

te
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

, G
EM

, U
D

P 

42



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

29
 

 
Th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
P

la
n

 t
o 

2
0

1
1

 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
m

bi
ti

on
: 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 t

ra
n

sp
or

t 
sy

st
em

 f
or

 H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

an
d 

cy
cl

e 
sa

fe
ty

 

Cl
lr 

W
ils

on
 

M
r 

D
un

hi
ll 

>
13

7 
N

o.
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 k
ill

ed
 

or
 s

er
io

us
ly

 in
ju

re
d 

on
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
ro

ad
s 

>
15

7 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

tr
af

fic
 &

 
ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
sc

he
m

es
, d

el
iv

er
 

sa
fe

r 
ro

ut
es

 t
o 

sc
ho

ol
s 

&
 h

ig
hw

ay
s 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

La
te

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 a

nd
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

 o
f 

th
e 

Jo
in

ed
 u

p 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
be

tt
er

 
pu

bl
ic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 in

 
to

w
n 

an
d 

co
un

tr
y 

Cl
lr 

W
ils

on
 

M
r 

D
un

hi
ll 

39
78

 
Lo

ca
l b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

(p
as

se
ng

er
 

jo
ur

ne
ys

 p
er

 y
ea

r)
 

(0
00

's
) 

39
48

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
bu

s 
su

bs
id

es
, b

us
 la

ne
s 

&
 o

th
er

 p
ub

lic
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

pa
rk

 &
 

rid
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

Re
du

ce
d 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
, 

re
du

ce
d 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
fu

nd
in

g 

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 

re
ta

rg
et

in
g 

of
 

su
bs

id
y 

as
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 
pr

ot
ec

t 
pr

io
rit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 

Re
du

ci
ng

 t
ra

ff
ic

 o
n 

ou
r 

ro
ad

s 
Cl

lr 
W

ils
on

 
M

r 
D

un
hi

ll 
>

6%
 

Ch
an

ge
 in

 A
nn

ua
l 

Av
er

ag
e 

D
ai

ly
 

Tr
af

fic
 (

AA
D

T)
 

vo
lu

m
es

 

>
3%

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
bu

s 
su

bs
id

es
, b

us
 la

ne
s 

&
 o

th
er

 p
ub

lic
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

pa
rk

 &
 

rid
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

Re
du

ce
d 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
, 

re
du

ce
d 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
fu

nd
in

g 

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 

re
ta

rg
et

in
g 

of
 

su
bs

id
y 

as
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 
pr

ot
ec

t 
pr

io
rit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 

43



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

30
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

Re
du

ci
ng

 t
ra

ff
ic

 o
n 

ou
r 

ro
ad

s 
Cl

lr 
W

ils
on

 
M

r 
D

un
hi

ll 
13

0 
N

o.
 o

f 
cy

cl
in

g 
tr

ip
s 

(in
de

x)
 

12
3 

In
cr

ea
se

 t
he

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
yc

lis
ts

 
us

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 c

yc
le

 
pa

rk
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

by
 

5%
 e

ve
ry

 2
 y

ea
rs

, 
Pr

ov
id

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

cy
cl

ew
ay

s,
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

sc
he

m
es

, r
oa

d 
sa

fe
ty

 s
ch

em
es

, 
de

liv
er

 s
af

er
 r

ou
te

s 
to

 s
ch

oo
ls

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 

hi
gh

w
ay

 a
nd

 
fo

ot
w

ay
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 

La
te

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 a

nd
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

 o
f 

th
e 

Jo
in

ed
 u

p 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

Pu
bl

ic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 
te

am
, s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
te

am
, 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 t

ea
m

, 
hi

gh
w

ay
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 t
ea

m
 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

ou
r 

ro
ad

s 

Cl
lr 

W
ils

on
 

M
r 

D
un

hi
ll 

10
 

Co
nd

iti
on

 o
f 

no
n-

pr
in

ci
pa

l r
oa

ds
 –

 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

30
 

D
el

iv
er

 t
he

 h
i g

hw
ay

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 J

U
P 

La
te

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 a

nd
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

 o
f 

th
e 

Jo
in

ed
 u

p 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

ou
r 

ro
ad

s 

Cl
lr 

W
ils

on
 

M
r 

D
un

hi
ll 

3 
Co

nd
iti

on
 o

f 
pr

in
ci

pa
l r

oa
ds

 b
y 

th
e 

TR
AC

S 
(m

ec
ha

ni
se

d 
su

rv
ey

 
te

ch
ni

qu
e)

 

3 
D

el
iv

er
 t

he
 h

i g
hw

ay
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 J
U

P 
La

te
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 a
nd

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

 o
f 

th
e 

Jo
in

ed
 u

p 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 

44



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

31
 

 
Th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
P

la
n

 t
o 

2
0

1
1

 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
m

bi
ti

on
: 

M
ee

t 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e'
s 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n

 n
ee

ds
 

Re
gu

la
rly

 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
nd

 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 t
o 

lo
ca

l 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ne

ed
s 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 B
ar

ne
tt

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
ch

oi
ce

 a
nd

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 fo

r 
al

l r
es

id
en

ts
  

Av
er

ag
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f 
st

ay
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 
th

at
 in

cl
ud

e 
de

pe
nd

an
t 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 b

ed
 a

nd
 

br
ea

kf
as

t 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 

0 
In

cr
ea

se
 t

he
 s

up
pl

y 
of

 s
et

tle
d 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

 Im
pr

ov
e 

re
se

tt
le

m
en

t 
su

pp
or

t 

Fi
na

nc
e 

 

St
af

fin
g 

TB
D

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

H
ou

si
ng

 
D

iv
is

io
n 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f 
pu

bl
ic

 
an

d 
pr

iv
at

e 
ho

us
in

g 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 B
ar

ne
tt

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

to
 

cr
ea

te
 a

 
ba

la
nc

ed
 a

nd
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t  

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 u
nf

it 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 
dw

el
lin

gs
 m

ad
e 

fit
 

or
 d

em
ol

is
he

d 
as

 a
 

di
re

ct
 r

es
ul

t 
of

 
ac

tio
n 

by
 t

he
 

Au
th

or
ity

 

3%
 

Ca
rr

y 
ou

t 
ne

w
 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 s

to
ck

 
co

nd
iti

on
 s

ur
ve

y 

St
af

fin
g 

TB
D

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

H
ou

si
ng

 
D

iv
is

io
n 

45



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

32
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 a
nd

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 B
ar

ne
tt

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

P
ro

vi
de

 d
ec

en
t 

h
om

es
 a

n
d 

su
st

ai
n

ab
le

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
 

N
ew

 &
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

m
es

 b
ui

lt 
(n

et
 

of
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
) 

TB
D

 
W

or
k 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

w
ith

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

so
ci

al
 la

nd
lo

rd
s 

an
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 

R
ev

ie
w

 e
xi

st
in

g 
sc

he
m

es
 t

o 
en

su
re

 
m

ax
im

um
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 
pr

oc
ur

in
g 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 u
ni

ts
  

Ca
pa

ci
ty

, l
in

ke
d 

to
 

ce
nt

ra
l f

un
di

ng
  

TB
D

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

H
ou

si
ng

 
D

iv
is

io
n 

46



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

33
 

 
Th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
P

la
n

 t
o 

2
0

1
1

 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
m

bi
ti

on
: 

Su
pp

or
t 

bu
si

n
es

s 
gr

ow
th

 a
n

d 
cr

ea
te

 m
or

e 
an

d 
be

tt
er

 p
ai

d 
w

or
k 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
To

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

in
di

ge
no

us
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
gr

ow
th

 

Cl
lr 

H
yd

e 
M

rs
 J

on
es

 
TB

D
 

Av
er

ag
e 

w
ee

kl
y 

ea
rn

in
g 

in
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 

av
er

ag
e 

in
 t

he
 W

es
t 

M
id

la
nd

s 

R
ed

uc
e 

ga
p 

by
 

20
%

 

En
su

re
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
po

st
 

16
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

Su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

in
flu

en
ce

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l's
 c

on
tr

ol

Re
gu

la
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 t
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 &

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
ac

tio
n 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 &

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
D

iv
is

io
n 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
in

di
ge

no
us

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

gr
ow

th
 

Cl
lr 

H
yd

e 
M

rs
 J

on
es

 
TB

D
 

G
ro

ss
 V

al
ue

 A
dd

ed
 

(G
VA

) 
pe

r 
he

ad
 in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 
W

es
t 

M
id

la
nd

s 
av

er
ag

e 

R
ed

uc
e 

ga
p 

by
 

20
%

 

En
su

re
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 

Su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

in
flu

en
ce

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l's
 c

on
tr

ol

Re
gu

la
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 t
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 &

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
ac

tio
n 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 &

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
D

iv
is

io
n 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
in

di
ge

no
us

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

gr
ow

th
 

Cl
lr 

H
yd

e 
M

rs
 J

on
es

 
TB

D
 

%
 o

f 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 

in
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

(a
ve

ra
ge

 o
ve

r 
ye

ar
)

80
%

 
En

su
re

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

Ec
on

om
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

St
ra

te
gy

 

Su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

in
flu

en
ce

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l's
 c

on
tr

ol

Re
gu

la
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 t
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 &

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
ac

tio
n 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 &

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
D

iv
is

io
n 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
w

or
ks

pa
ce

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

Cl
lr 

H
yd

e 
M

rs
 J

on
es

 
TB

D
 

Co
m

pl
et

io
ns

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 
(h

ec
ta

re
s)

 

15
 

En
su

re
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 

Su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

in
flu

en
ce

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l's
 c

on
tr

ol

Re
gu

la
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 t
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 &

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
ac

tio
n 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 &

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
D

iv
is

io
n 

47



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

34
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

To
 f

os
te

r 
in

no
va

tio
n,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
se

ar
ch

 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 

Cl
lr 

H
yd

e 
M

rs
 J

on
es

 
TB

D
 

N
o.

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 in

 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 &
 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
in

te
ns

iv
e 

in
du

st
rie

s

TB
D

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

ba
se

lin
e 

&
 

ag
re

e 
ta

rg
et

s;
 

en
su

re
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 

Su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

in
flu

en
ce

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l's
 c

on
tr

ol

Re
gu

la
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 t
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 &

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
ac

tio
n 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 &

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
D

iv
is

io
n 

48



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

35
 

 
Th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

h
ir

e 
P

la
n

 t
o 

2
0

1
1

 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
m

bi
ti

on
: 

P
ro

vi
de

 e
xc

el
le

n
t 

ed
u

ca
ti

on
, t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

le
ar

n
in

g 
op

po
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

fo
r 

al
l a

ge
s 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
go

od
 

qu
al

ity
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 f

or
 

al
l 

Cl
lr 

R
ul

e 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
85

%
 

%
 o

f 
3 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
a 

go
od

 q
ua

lit
y 

fr
ee

 
ea

rly
 y

ea
rs

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pl
ac

e 
in

 
th

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y,

 
pr

iv
at

e 
or

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
se

ct
or

s 

5%
 

Pr
om

ot
e 

&
 p

ro
vi

de
 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

ea
rly

 
ye

ar
s 

se
tt

in
gs

 t
o 

ob
ta

in
 Q

A 
ac

cr
ed

ita
tio

n 

La
ck

 o
f 

ta
ke

 u
p 

of
 

Q
A 

Pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

ac
cr

ed
ite

d 
se

tt
in

gs
 

to
 p

ar
en

ts
 

Ea
rly

 Y
ea

rs
 &

 
Ch

ild
ca

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
go

od
 

qu
al

ity
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 f

or
 

al
l 

Cl
lr 

Ru
le

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 p
up

ils
 

in
 L

EA
 s

ch
oo

ls
 in

 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

su
m

m
er

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

Le
ve

l 4
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

in
 

th
e 

Ke
y 

St
ag

e 
2 

M
at

he
m

at
ic

s 
te

st
 

82
%

 
(2

00
5/

6)
20

07
/8

 
TB

D
 

Ta
rg

et
ed

 s
up

po
rt

 t
o 

sc
ho

ol
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r 

sc
or

e 

Lo
ss

 o
f 

sk
ill

ed
 s

ta
ff

 
to

 g
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ad
vi

ce
 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

&
 

re
te

nt
io

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
In

sp
ec

tio
n,

 A
dv

ic
e 

&
 S

ch
oo

l 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
go

od
 

qu
al

ity
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 f

or
 

al
l 

Cl
lr 

Ru
le

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 p
up

ils
 

in
 L

EA
 s

ch
oo

ls
 in

 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

su
m

m
er

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

Le
ve

l 4
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

in
 

th
e 

Ke
y 

St
ag

e 
2 

En
gl

is
h 

te
st

 

81
%

 
(2

00
5/

6)
 

20
07

/8
 

TB
D

 

Ta
rg

et
ed

 s
up

po
rt

 t
o 

sc
ho

ol
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r 

sc
or

e 

Lo
ss

 o
f 

sk
ill

ed
 s

ta
ff

 
to

 g
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ad
vi

ce
 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

&
 

re
te

nt
io

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
In

sp
ec

tio
n,

 A
dv

ic
e 

&
 S

ch
oo

l 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
go

od
 

qu
al

ity
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 f

or
 

al
l 

Cl
lr 

Ru
le

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 p
up

ils
 

in
 L

EA
 s

ch
oo

ls
 in

 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

su
m

m
er

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
5 

or
 m

or
e 

G
CS

Es
 a

t 
gr

ad
es

 A
* 

- 
C 

or
 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 

63
%

 
20

05
/6

) 
20

07
/8

 
TB

D
 

Su
pp

or
t 

cu
rr

ic
ul

um
 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
&

 s
ch

oo
l 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 

La
ck

 o
f 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
ex

pe
rt

is
e 

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 
te

ac
he

rs
 

In
sp

ec
tio

n,
 A

dv
ic

e 
&

 S
ch

oo
l 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

49



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

36
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
h

ir
e 

P
la

n
 t

o 
2

0
1

1
 

Th
e 

C
ou

n
ci

l's
 C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
2

0
1

1
 

To
 2

00
8 

A
im

s 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d 

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

 
Ta

rg
et

In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
go

od
 

qu
al

ity
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 f

or
 

al
l 

Cl
lr 

Ru
le

 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

%
 o

f 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

le
av

in
g 

ca
re

 a
ge

d 
16

 o
r 

ov
er

 w
ith

 a
t 

le
as

t 
1 

G
CS

E 
gr

ad
e 

A*
 -

 G
 o

r 
a 

 G
N

VQ
 

TB
D

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
lo

ok
ed

 
af

te
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

(M
BS

S 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

) 

Co
nt

in
ui

n g
 c

ha
ng

es
 

to
 a

 v
er

y 
sm

al
l 

co
ho

rt
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

ki
ng

 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 

of
 s

up
po

rt
 t

o 
lo

ok
ed

 
af

te
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Li

ai
so

n 
Su

pp
or

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 

El
im

in
at

in
g 

th
e 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 t
o 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

Cl
lr 

R
ul

e 
M

s 
Fi

en
ne

s 
TB

D
 

N
o.

 o
f 

ne
w

 o
ut

 o
f 

sc
ho

ol
 h

ou
rs

 
ch

ild
ca

re
 p

la
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

11
25

 
(2

00
5/

6)
 

20
07

/8
 

TB
D

 

Pr
om

ot
e 

&
 p

ro
vi

de
 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

ou
t 

of
 

sc
ho

ol
 h

ou
rs

 
ch

ild
ca

re
 p

la
ce

s 

Lo
ss

 o
f 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

fu
nd

in
g 

Re
vi

ew
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 

th
e 

lig
ht

 o
f 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

Ea
rly

 Y
ea

rs
 &

 
Ch

ild
ca

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 

 

50



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

37
 

Pa
rt

 T
w

o 
- 

 M
ak

in
g 

it
 h

ap
pe

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
gr

ea
te

r 
cu

st
om

er
 f

oc
us

 a
nd

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

 
 

 
 

To
 2

00
8 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
, c

iti
ze

ns
 

an
d 

vi
si

to
rs

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

jo
in

ed
-u

p,
 m

or
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
, d

el
iv

er
ed

 
or

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
al

ly
, o

pe
n 

an
d 

ac
co

un
ta

bl
e 

(S
IP

) 

Th
e 

%
 o

f 
ci

tiz
en

s 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 

ov
er

al
l s

er
vi

ce
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
ei

r 
au

th
or

ity
 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
r 

Pr
in

gl
e 

55
%

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e;
 

im
pl

em
en

t 
IC

T 
St

ra
te

gy
; 

ca
pi

ta
l 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
no

t 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

 

Ca
bi

ne
t 

m
em

be
r 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

 g
iv

en
 

po
w

er
 t

o 
en

fo
rc

e 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il;

 
re

gu
la

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ac
tio

n 
by

 C
XM

T 
&

 C
ab

in
et

; 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

by
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
  

Cl
lr 

Fr
en

ch
; 

M
rs

 J
on

es
; 

de
di

ca
te

d 
st

af
f 

in
 e

ac
h 

di
re

ct
or

at
e/

de
pa

rt
m

en
t 

%
 o

f 
re

qu
es

ts
 

an
sw

er
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 

20
 d

ay
 t

im
e 

lim
it 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 F
re

nc
h 

M
s 

Ro
se

nt
ha

l
10

0%
 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
FO

I 
Pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
Sc

he
m

e 
Sy

st
em

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s;
 

in
ad

eq
ua

te
 s

ta
ff

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t;

 s
ta

ff
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

O
ff

ic
er

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 r
eq

ue
st

 
ha

nd
lin

g 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

tr
ie

va
l 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

ee
ts

 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
Fr

ee
do

m
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Ac

t 
(F

O
I)

  

%
 o

f 
ap

pe
al

s 
to

 t
he

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
er

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
up

he
ld

 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 F
re

nc
h 

M
ar

ie
 

R
os

en
th

al
 

0 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

FO
I 

Pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

Sc
he

m
e 

Sy
st

em
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s;

 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

 s
ta

ff
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t;

 s
ta

ff
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

O
ff

ic
er

 

To
 k

ee
p 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 p

eo
pl

e,
 

ou
r 

st
af

f 
an

d 
ou

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 in

vo
lv

ed
 a

nd
 

in
fo

rm
ed

 a
bo

ut
 w

ha
t 

w
e 

ar
e 

do
in

g 
an

d 
w

hy
 

%
 o

f 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
Vo

ic
e 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 f
ee

l t
ha

t 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l d
oe

s 
en

ou
gh

 
to

 g
iv

e 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 t
o 

in
flu

en
ce

 im
po

rt
an

t 
de

ci
si

on
s 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
rs

 J
on

es
 

30
%

 
R
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 &

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 

A 
la

ck
 o

f 
co

rp
or

at
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

pp
ro

ac
h

Pl
an

ne
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 &
 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
re

so
ur

ce
d 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 c

ov
er

in
g 

al
l 

ar
ea

s 
of

 t
he

 
Co

un
ci

l's
 w

or
k 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 &

 M
em

be
r 

Se
rv

ic
es

; 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Te

am
; 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t 

Co
or

di
na

to
r 

51



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

38
 

 
 

 
 

To
 2

00
8 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 im

pa
ct

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
; 

ke
ep

 
sc

he
m

es
 &

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
un

de
r 

re
vi

ew
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Po

lic
y 

As
si

st
an

t,
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 
G

ro
up

, R
ac

e 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
G

ro
up

, D
is

ab
ili

ty
 G

ro
up

 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

Po
lic

y
D

iv
er

si
ty

 G
ro

up
 

To
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

an
d 

up
ho

ld
 t

he
 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l r

ig
ht

 o
f 

ev
er

yo
ne

 t
o 

be
 

tr
ea

te
d 

eq
ua

lly
, w

ith
 

re
sp

ec
t 

an
d 

di
gn

ity
 

le
ve

l (
if 

an
y)

 o
f 

th
e 

Eq
ua

lit
y 

St
an

da
rd

 f
or

 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
to

 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
co

nf
or

m
s 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
rs

 J
on

es
 

2 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
Ra

ce
 

Eq
ua

lit
y 

Sc
he

m
e 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t 
an

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 w
hi

ch
 

de
liv

er
s 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 

Re
gu

la
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

by
 C

XM
T 

&
 C

ab
in

et
; 

ov
er

si
gh

t 
by

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 

Ra
ce

 E
qu

al
ity

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
Pa

y 
&

 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 S
tr

at
eg

y;
 

pr
ov

id
e 

w
id

er
 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
re

le
va

nt
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t 
an

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 w
hi

ch
 

de
liv

er
s 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 

R
eg

ul
ar

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
, 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
&

 a
ct

io
n 

by
 C

ab
in

et
 &

 C
XM

T 
le

ad
s 

H
R
 T

ea
m

, a
ll 

m
an

ag
er

s 

Co
nd

uc
t 

sk
ill

s 
au

di
t 

Co
st

 
En

su
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

H
R
 T

ea
m

 

To
 d

ev
el

op
 t

he
 

Co
un

ci
l's

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

an
d 

th
e 

sk
ill

s 
an

d 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 
its

 w
or

k-
fo

rc
e 

%
 p

er
so

na
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

s 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

&
 %

 o
f 

pl
an

ne
d 

ac
tiv

ity
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 F
re

nc
h 

 
M

r 
Jo

hn
so

n 
 

10
0%

 

Ke
y 

sk
ill

s 
ne

ed
ed

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
re

 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t 
an

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 w
hi

ch
 

de
liv

er
s 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 

R
eg

ul
ar

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
, 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
&

 a
ct

io
n 

by
 C

ab
in

et
 &

 C
XM

T 
le

ad
s 

H
R
 T

ea
m

, L
oc

al
 F

E 
pr

ov
id

er
 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s/
sh

ift
s 

lo
st

 t
o 

si
ck

ne
ss

 
ab

se
nc

e 
pe

r 
fu

ll 
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 F
re

nc
h 

M
r 

Jo
hn

so
n 

5.
5 

Co
nt

in
ue

d 
lin

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

&
 a

ct
io

n;
 

Pr
ov

id
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

Co
un

se
lli

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
m

ot
iv

at
e 

&
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
re

w
ar

d 
st

af
f 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
Pa

y 
&

 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
H

R
 T

ea
m

; 
lin

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l's
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 is
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 
re

w
ar

de
d 

an
d 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 

  
%

 s
ta

ff
 t

ur
no

ve
r 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 F
re

nc
h 

M
r 

Jo
hn

so
n 

6%
 

Co
nt

in
ue

d 
lin

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

&
 a

ct
io

n

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
m

ot
iv

at
e 

&
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
re

w
ar

d 
st

af
f 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
Pa

y 
&

 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
H

R
 T

ea
m

; 
lin

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

52



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

39
 

 
 

 
 

To
 2

00
8 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 
ch

ild
re

n 

O
ut

co
m

es
 o

f 
Jo

in
t 

Ar
ea

 R
ev

ie
w

s 
Cl

lr 
Ru

le
 

M
r 

Pr
in

gl
e 

Im
pr

ov
e 

CP
A 

sc
or

es
  

fo
r 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
 

ch
ild

re
n'

s 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
(o

r 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 
ra

tin
gs

 
un

de
r 

ne
w

 
al

l c
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 
re

gi
m

e)
  

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Pl

an
 (

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 
an

d 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

na
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t)

; 
Ap

po
in

t 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f 
Ch

ild
re

n'
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

  

Fa
il 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

fr
on

t-
lin

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

o 
ch

ild
re

n 
be

ca
us

e 
 m

an
ag

er
s 

di
st

ra
ct

ed
 b

y 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

na
l i

ss
ue

s R
eg

ul
ar

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
, 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
&

 a
ct

io
n 

by
 C

ab
in

et
 &

 C
XM

T 
le

ad
s 

Ad
di

tio
na

l s
ta

ff
 f

or
 

tr
an

si
tio

n 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 
N

et
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 c

os
t 

of
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 
(S

IP
) 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
r 

Pr
in

gl
e 

£1
 m

ill
io

n 
in

 
ye

ar
 o

ne
 

(o
ve

r 
an

d 
ab

ov
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

sa
vi

ng
s)

; 
to

 
be

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 
fo

r 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 
ye

ar
s 

  

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e;

 
im

pl
em

en
t 

IC
T 

st
ra

te
gy

; 
ca

pi
ta

l 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
no

t 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

  

Ca
bi

ne
t 

m
em

be
r 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

 g
iv

en
 

po
w

er
 t

o 
en

fo
rc

e 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il;

 
re

gu
la

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ac
tio

n 
by

 C
XM

T 
&

 C
ab

in
et

; 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

by
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
  

Cl
lr 

Fr
en

ch
; 

M
rs

 J
on

es
; 

de
di

ca
te

d 
st

af
f 

in
 e

ac
h 

di
re

ct
or

at
e/

de
pa

rt
m

en
t 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 t

he
 

Co
un

ci
l's

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

    

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s/
sh

ift
s 

lo
st

 t
o 

si
ck

ne
ss

 
ab

se
nc

e 
pe

r 
fu

ll 
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 F
re

nc
h 

M
r 

Jo
hn

so
n 

5.
5 

Co
nt

in
ue

d 
lin

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

&
 a

ct
io

n;
 

Pr
ov

id
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

Co
un

se
lli

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
m

ot
iv

at
e 

&
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
re

w
ar

d 
st

af
f 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
Pa

y 
&

 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
H

R
 T

ea
m

; 
lin

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

53



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

40
 

 
 

 
 

To
 2

00
8 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

 
St

af
f 

tu
rn

ov
er

 
Cl

lr 
M

rs
 F

re
nc

h 
M

r 
Jo

hn
so

n 
6%

 
Co

nt
in

ue
d 

lin
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
&

 a
ct

io
n

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
m

ot
iv

at
e 

&
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
re

w
ar

d 
st

af
f 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
Pa

y 
&

 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
H

R
 T

ea
m

; 
lin

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

To
 o

bt
ai

n 
Be

st
 V

al
ue

 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f 

al
l 

go
od

s,
 w

or
ks

 a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

hr
ou

gh
 

pl
an

ne
d 

an
d 

sk
ilf

ul
 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

Co
st

 o
f 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

- 
N

ot
e:

 O
D

P
M

 a
re

 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

co
n

su
lt

in
g 

on
 

pr
op

os
ed

 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 F
re

nc
h 

M
s 

R
os

en
th

al
-7

.5
0%

 
Ap

po
in

t 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t(

s)
; 

ce
nt

ra
lis

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t;
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
an

d 
em

be
d 

ne
w

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

In
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 
ex

pe
rt

is
e 

an
d 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Se
e 

Ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
; 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

st
af

f 
tr

ai
ni

ng
; 

re
gu

la
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

by
 

CX
M

T,
 C

ab
in

et
; 

ov
er

si
gh

t 
by

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t(
s)

 

To
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
ra

tio
na

lis
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 

pr
op

er
ty

 p
or

tf
ol

io
 

To
ta

l c
os

t 
of

 o
ff

ic
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

at
 

20
04

/5
 p

ric
es

 

Cl
lr 

H
yd

e 
M

r 
D

un
hi

ll 
-1

5%
 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
Ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
St

ra
te

gy
 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
se

cu
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 

Id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

op
tio

ns
 

Ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

Bo
ar

d 

To
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
us

e 
of

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

O
ve

ra
ll 

sc
or

e 
on

 
Au

di
to

r 
Sc

or
ed

 
Ju

dg
em

en
t 

(C
PA

 u
se

 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
) 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
r 

H
ys

on
 

4 
Fo

cu
s 

on
 k

ey
 a

re
as

 
of

 r
el

at
iv

e 
w

ea
kn

es
s 

w
ith

in
 c

ur
re

nt
 

ju
dg

em
en

t 

Lo
ss

 o
f 

fo
cu

s 
on

 k
ey

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ar
ea

s 
su

ch
 

as
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t

M
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 A
ud

it 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
 a

t 
le

as
t 

an
nu

al
ly

 t
o 

di
sc

us
s 

ho
w

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ca

n 
be

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

Tr
ea

su
re

r's
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
 

Co
un

ci
l h

as
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

s

 

Th
e 

st
at

us
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l's
 B

es
t 

Va
lu

e 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 P

la
n 

Cl
lr 

W
ilc

ox
 

M
r 

Pr
in

gl
e 

U
nq

ua
lif

ie
d

Ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 t

o 
en

su
re

 r
ob

us
t,

 
au

di
ta

bl
e 

da
ta

  

In
ad

eq
ua

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

co
nt

ro
l 

Re
gu

la
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

by
 C

XM
T 

an
d 

Ca
bi

ne
t;

 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

by
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
  

CX
M

T;
 H

ea
d 

of
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t;
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Po

lic
y;

 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

 

54



Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pl

an
 2

00
5-

08
 

Dr
af

t 
07

/1
2/

04
 

41
 

 
 

 
 

To
 2

00
8 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ea
d

C
X

M
T 

Le
ad

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

M
it

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

 
Th

e 
%

 o
f 

th
os

e 
m

ak
in

g 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 

ha
nd

lin
g 

of
 t

ho
se

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 

Cl
lr 

W
ilc

ox
 

M
rs

 J
on

es
 

50
%

 
D

ef
in

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
w

he
re

 t
he

y 
do

n'
t 

al
re

ad
y 

ex
is

t;
 d

ef
in

e 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s;
 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

; 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

un
ifi

ed
 c

us
to

m
er

 
re

la
tio

ns
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
; 

st
af

f 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

In
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 
ex

pe
rt

is
e 

an
d 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Se
e 

Ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
; 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

st
af

f 
tr

ai
ni

ng
; 

re
gu

la
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

by
 

CX
M

T,
 C

ab
in

et
; 

ov
er

si
gh

t 
by

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

le
ad

 o
ff

ic
er

; 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 L

ea
ds

 in
 

ea
ch

 
di

re
ct

or
at

e/
de

pa
rt

m
en

t 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
of

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

CP
A 

sc
or

e 
Cl

lr 
Ph

ill
ip

s 
M

r 
Pr

in
gl

e 
Im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
co

rp
or

at
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

sc
or

es
 

Ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n/

ac
hi

ev
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

sc
or

es
 f

or
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 e

le
m

en
ts

; 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ta

rg
et

s 
to

 
be

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
no

un
ce

m
en

t 
of

 
CP

A 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 

In
ad

eq
ua

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

co
nt

ro
l 

Re
gu

la
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

by
 C

XM
T 

&
 C

ab
in

et
; 

ov
er

si
gh

t 
by

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

  

CX
M

T;
 C

or
po

ra
te

 
Po

lic
y;

 H
ea

d 
of

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 

To
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 in

 lo
ca

l 
de

m
oc

ra
cy

 

%
 o

f 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
to

 
th

e 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 u

ph
el

d 

Cl
lr 

Ph
ill

ip
s 

M
s 

R
os

en
th

al
0%

 
En

su
re

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

La
ck

 o
f 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 u
p-

to
-d

at
e 

ru
le

s 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

by
 

M
em

be
rs

 

Re
gu

la
r 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

M
em

be
r 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

55



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

42 

Appendix 1 

Income in 2004-05 by source 

56



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

43 

Appendix 2 

Budgets in 2004-05 by service/corporate area 

57



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

44 

Appendix 3 

Estimated income by source 2005-08 

58



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

45 

Appendix 4 

Proposed expenditure 2005-08 by service/corporate area  

59



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

46 

Appendix 5 

Capital programme 2005 –08 

60



Corporate Plan 2005-08 Draft 07/12/04 

47 

Appendix 6 

The Herefordshire Plan

Herefordshire Council's
Corporate Plan

Herefordshire Council's
Annual Operating Plan

Sets out the Herefordshire
Partnership's vision for
Herefordshire and is the
County's community strategy

Directorate/
Department Plans

Service Plans

Staff Review and
Development

Team Plans
(optional)

Sets out the Council's
contribution to The
Herefordshire Plan including
performance measures  and
targets for 3 years, actions  to
achieve them, associated
risks and their mitigation and
the resources to be allocated

Sets out what the Council is
going to do in the coming year
to achieve  the targets in the
Corporate Plan

Sets out what each
Directorate or Department is
going to do in the coming year
to achieve relevant targets in
the Annual Operating Plan
and other service-related
targets

Sets out what each Service is
going to do in the coming year
to achieve relevant targets in
the Directorate Plan and other
service-related targets

Sets out what particular
Teams are going to do in the
coming year to achieve
relevant targets in Service
Plans

Establishes what individual
members of staff are going to
do to achieve relevant targets
in Service or Team Plans

The
Corporate
Planning
Process

 

61



62



 
 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Sara Strong, Local Area Forum Co-ordinator on (01432) 260167 

LAFReportNov040.doc  

LOCAL AREA FORUMS 
PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY:  
CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE  

CABINET  16TH DECEMBER, 2004 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To receive feedback on the November 2004 round of Local Area Forums, Budget 
Consultation.  To note issues raised by the community and to continue to identify ways to 
improve and develop public consultation at Local Area Forums. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision   

Recommendation 

THAT the report be noted. 

Reasons 

Cabinet agreed the principles for new arrangements for LAFs in October 2003.  Issues 
raised at the meetings are to be relayed to Cabinet after each round of Local Area Forums. 

Considerations 

Background  

1. The LAFs were held at a variety of locations over a three week period in November. 
The meetings were arranged through Member Services within the County Secretary 
and Solicitors Department.  The Forums were solely dedicated to the budget 
consultation and each meeting lasted for approximately two hours. Public 
participation was very good at every meeting, but the numbers of attendees was 
lower than anticipated at some of the meetings, in particular Central Herefordshire 
where there were only 13 members of the public present.   

General Issues 

2. A meeting is to be held on 8th December, 2004 with all LAF Chairmen, Cabinet 
Members and the Leader, to discuss the recent round of Forums. 

AGENDA ITEM 5

63



Summary of Agenda Item 

3. Budget Consultation – Speakers; Councillor Roger Phillips (Leader of the Council), 
Mr Neil Pringle (Chief Executive), Mr Ian Hyson (County Treasurer). 

4. Each meeting commenced with a short introduction from The Leader of the Council, 
who discussed the reasons for the budget consultation and the background events 
that had informed the consultative process.  The main areas of discussion were the 
Council’s obligation to consult, the budget deficit, areas of greatest challenge namely 
Adult Social Care and the ways in which the Council is considering addressing the 
shortfall.  The Chief Executive then followed with a presentation (copies of which are 
available on request) that focused on the following topics; 

• Why the Council has to choose; 
• Building on success; 
• Getting more for your money; 
• What choices are there? 
• Your views matter; 

 
The focus, in particular, was on the ways in which the funding gap could be met, out 
lining the internal areas where efficiency savings could be made and discretionary 
service areas which would need to be reassessed in the light of any deficit. 

Local Interest Items 

5. The Chairmen gave responses to questions that had been raised prior to the 
meetings and for those carried forward from the last round of forums. These are 
detailed at Appendix 1. 

Summary of the Issues Raised at Meetings 

6. Appendix 1 provides a summary of the issues raised at each of the Local Area 
Forums. 

Alternative Options 

There are no alternative options. 

Risk Management 

None. 

Consultees 

Local Area Forums’ Chairmen and Cabinet Members and the Leader of the Council. 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

64



Appendix 1 

Budget Consultaion LAFs 

Summary of the Issues Raised at Meetings 
 

North Herefordshire – Lady Hawkins Leisure Centre, Kington 
 
Attendees 
 

Councillors; S Bowen, Mrs J French, J Goodwin, J Hope, 
R Phillips, R Stockon, J Stone. 
22 members of the public 
 

Presentation 
 

Queries/Comments 

Update Chief Executive gave response to two questions, which had been 
posed prior to the meeting; 

• Reassurance sought about the Herefordshire Jarvis 
contract. 

• What is the budget for implementation of the new Licensing 
Act? 

Budget  
Consultation 

• Concern about the number of councillors (58.) representing 
a population of 177,000 and how councillors expenses can 
be justified given this ratio. 

• Similarly comments about the cost of Parish Councils.  
• Suggestion to sell off Wesleyan Chapel to raise capital.  
• Delay the proposed improvements to Kington Library. 
• Check for duplication of work by the voluntary sector. 
• Query about staffing levels for the Kington Regeneration 

Partnership. 
• Lower public expectation by educating residents about the 

disadvantages, as well as advantages, of living in a 
sparsely populated rural county, especially expectations 
relating to road systems.  

• Support canvassed for Community Transport Scheme, in 
terms of its contribution towards staying put objectives and 
its addressing of social/rural isolation issues, by CX of 
Herefordshire Voluntary Action Group.  

• Concern about the format of the consultation 
questionnaire, and the lack of monetary values attributed to 
choices. It was felt that without this it was impossible to 
make an informed selection of one service over another. 
This also gave rise to strong concerns about the quality of 
the data that will be collected.  

• Questions and concerns about Herefordshire Council’s job 
evaluation process; the impact of this on staff, in terms of 
recruitment and retention of a quality workforce and the 
cost of the process. 

• An advocate spoke on behalf of Teme Valley Youth 
Services (Wigmore) and explained the importance of 
‘match funding’ for the project. 

• Support canvassed for the Citizens Advice Bureau, and a 
request for the release of the ‘Best Value Review of the 
Voluntary Sector’ report. 

• Concern expressed about the cost of administering the 
Market Towns and any overlaps involved in this.  

• Query about the number of staff employed on short term 
contracts. 

65



 

• Query about £2million efficiency savings and who is 
involved in identifying these, and by what criteria. 

• How will the resulting budget decisions be presented to the 
public, given that monetary values have not been attributed 
to the questionnaire choices? 

• Concern about any possible closure of Leominster Leisure 
Centre.   

 
Central Herefordshire – Withington Village Hall 

 
 
Attendees 
 

Councillors; J Guthrie, B Matthews,  Mrs Robertson, B Wilcox, 
M Wilson.  
Apologies; Councillor Mrs J Pemberton 
13 members of the public 
 

Presentation  Queries/Comments  
 

Update None 
Budget 
Consultation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• It was felt, that people had not been afforded the 
opportunity to make informed choices due to the lack of 
monetary values for the questionnaire choices. 

• Will Members be expected to make decisions in this way, 
i.e. without values given for their choice options? 

• Concern about the number of staff employed by 
Herefordshire Council and the ratio of this to the County’s 
residents.  

• Is the Authority too small, has the break from 
Worcestershire been justified?  

• Given the problem of Government funding having been 
based upon outdated census figures, what is the Council 
doing to address this, and why can’t the council simply 
refuse to meet Government set targets in protest? 

• Concern expressed about migrant retirees adding to the 
Adult Care budget total. 

• Councillors’ expenses were raised as a concern 
• A justification for the cost of using specialist consultants 

was requested. 
• Concern over costs attached to the maintenance and 

running of numerous buildings/office accommodation. 
• What are the costs involved in running private taxis for 

school children? 
• The Council should consider a freeze on all new 

recruitment until the budget has been agreed. 
• What areas are being considered for the Council’s internal 

cost cutting exercises? 
• Is the Herefordshire Jarvis partnership a cause for 

concern? 
• Have car parking charges provided a valid means of 

generating revenue? 
• Are waste recycling targets being met? 
• What are the costs involved in advertising in the City/Town 

papers?  

66



 

Ross-On-Wye – John Kyrle High School 
 
Attendees 
 

Councillors; G Davis, Mrs J Hyde, Mrs R Lincoln, G Lucas. 
Apologies; Councillor Mrs A Gray. 
27 members of the public 
 

Presentation 
 

Queries/Comments 

Update Brief comment by Cllr Davis in response to press articles and 
letters following the September Forum.   

Budget Consultation • Giving the relative value of the budgetary shortfall against 
the Council’s total expenditure would have been helpful. 

• General comment about the questionnaire and questions 
about the wider consultative process. 

• Requests for conclusions of the ‘Value for Money’ survey 
of the Voluntary Sector. 

• What % of the budget is given in funding to the Voluntary 
Sector? 

• Comment from a Trustee of the Citizens Advice Bureau 
regarding funding levels to the charity. 

• Will the Heritage Centre close, as suggested by the press?
• Comment about the importance of ‘match funding’ to 

voluntary groups. 
• The budget survey should reflect ‘value for money’ 

comparisons between various service providers. 
• Many comments about the importance of tourism and the 

valuable contribution of Tourist Information Offices and 
voluntary groups such as Ross in Bloom.   

• Questions and concerns about respite care and the 
reduction in this provision, along with the closure of some 
care homes.  

• What is the cost of the budget consultation? 
• Questions and comment about the computation of Council 

Tax and the perceived inequalities with the present 
system. 

Other Issues • The disputed ownership of Gypsy Lane. 
• Question about a no waiting order for Brookfield 

Road/Brampton Street. 
• Question about grants for shop frontages; Hightown, 

Hereford. 
 

 

67



 

East Herefordshire – John Masefield High School, Ledbury 
 
Attendees 
 

Councillors; P Edwards, B Hunt, R Mills, D Rule, R Stockton.  
Apologies; Councillor T Hunt, Mr Len Huff (Chair Ledbury 
Independent Traders)  
34 members of the public 
  

Presentation 
 

Queries/Comments 

Update None 
Budget Consultation • Concerns about budget questionnaire, as expressed at 

other area forums. 
• Various comments about Council Tax levying and 

calculation, banding and the perceived unfairness of the 
tax. 

• Comment about the importance of tourism and Tourist 
information Offices. 

• Falling standards of local services especially those for 
Older People. 

• Why no bus passes for Older People? 
• Representation from; Community Transport Schemes, 

Ledbury Shop Mobility, Ledbury Day Care Centre and 
concern about the impact of any cuts on the health and 
well being of local residents. 

• Affordable housing needed for local people. 
• Representation from Ledbury Youth Centre, to recognise 

the importance of this service to the local community.   
• Praise for the recycling initiatives. 
• Traffic congestion and a transport policy framed to 

address this. 
• Local Area Forums are poorly advertised and not many 

residents are aware of them, what is being done to 
improve this?   

 
 

68



 

Hereford City – Shirehall 
 
Attendees 
 

Councillors; Mrs P Andrews, Mrs E Bew, P Edwards, D Fleet,  
Mrs J French, G Hyde, Mrs M Lloyd-Hayes, Ms G Powell, 
Miss F Short , B Walling.    
50 members of the public 
 

Presentation 
 

Queries/Comments 

Update None 
Budget Consultation • Staffing levels queried. 

• Concerns about the ability to meet future demands upon 
social care services, given the projected increase of the 
older population. 

• How has Government funding for education been spent? 
• Concern about the low numbers of residents present at the 

Forum. 
• Reassurance needed about Jarvis and what would happen 

should they declare bankruptcy. 
• How is staff morale, given the current job evaluation 

process? 
• Is the Authority too small to be viable in the longer term? 
• More information is needed for the consultation to be 

meaningful and for residents to make informed choices. 
• The survey should also provide information about which 

services are statutory and which are discretionary. 
• Concern about the number of sites and buildings that the 

Council operates from. 
• Many comments about car parking and charges; is it fair 

for the City car parking charges to subsidise rural areas? 
there is not sufficient parking, charges at night impact on 
businesses.   

• Concern about any new development, i.e. new roads, if 
ongoing maintenance costs are involved. 

• Eign Gate improvements and associated costs. 
• Complaints about Traffic Wardens and perceived lack of 

discretion over cases where older or disabled people are 
delayed by as little as five minutes. 

• What is the Council’s current borrowing commitment and 
associated repayment costs. 

• What areas (internal) have been identified for realising 
savings? 

• Queries about Christmas park and ride scheme, in the 
light of Sunday Bus service cuts. 

• Herefordshire Matters, is it value for money? 
• Request from Parish Councils for the minutes of the 

Forums to be put onto the Council Website. 
Other 
 

• Suggestions for future agenda items included; litter and 
cleanliness, feedback on the Budget Consultation, ways to 
improve Forum attendance. 

 
 

69



 

Golden Valley - Peterchurch 
 
Attendees 
 

Councillors; C Mayson, D Taylor. 
Apologies; P Turpin 
32 members of the public 
 

Presentation 
 

Queries/Comments 

Update Response prepared by Stephanie Canham (Head of Social Care) 
to a query regarding care assessments. 
Prepared reply given to three prior questions regarding the 
Budget Consultation. 
 

Budget Consultation • Are independent assessments of the Council’s 
performance really independent? 

• Concern about staffing levels and the appropriateness of 
these. 

• Numerous comments about poor information given on the 
questionnaires and the difficulty in making informed 
choices. Queries about why further background 
documentation wasn’t available on line. 

• Why consult at all?  Is it just an exercise in public 
relations? 

• Concern about possible cuts in Adult Care services and 
the increasing demands of an ageing population, 

• Bed blocking problems and the impact on Community 
Hospitals. 

• Will the Lengthsman’s Scheme be cut? 
• Justification for job evaluation process? 
• Does ‘Herefordshire Matters’ provide value for money?  
• Can the Council afford to continue to provide services that 

are rated as good/excellent?  
• Requests for the continuation of rural library services. 
• If the consultative process identifies areas for cuts, how 

much will they be cut by? 
• Praise for frontline council services especially first point of 

contact. 
• Request for bureaucratic process to be streamlined rather 

than service cuts. 
• Comment about value for money services provided by the 

voluntary sector in particular Community Transport. 
• Eign Gate costs queried. 
• Concern at the lack of contributions from businesses 

towards Christmas lights and frontage improvements. 
• The importance of tourism to the area. 
• The necessity to continue to provide public conveniences. 
• Council tax, perceived inequalities. 
• The importance of youth services. 

 

70



  

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

 Kevin Lloyd, Policy Assistant, on (01432) 383401   

Corporate Health 

CORPORATE HEALTH PERFORMANCE 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY:  
AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

CABINET 16TH DECEMBER, 2004    
 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To receive an update on the Council’s corporate performance in relation to our National and 
Local Best Value Performance Indicators from 1 April 2004 to 30 September 2004.  

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision.    

Recommendation 

THAT performance in relation to the Council’s National and Local Corporate Best 
Value Indicators, from 1 April to 30 September 2004 be noted. 

Reasons 

The Council has developed revised performance monitoring arrangements as outlined in the 
Comprehensive Performance Self-assessment document submitted to the Audit 
Commission. The revised arrangements ensure that the Chief Executive’s Management 
Team, the Strategic Monitoring Committee, Scrutiny Committees, and Cabinet are all 
involved in the performance monitoring process.  

Considerations 

1. During 2004/2005 corporate performance is being reported to Cabinet at 4, 6, 8, 10 
and 12 monthly intervals, in line with the Council’s Performance Management 
Framework.  

2. Corporate performance for the 4 month period 1 April 2004 to 30 September 2004 
has been reported on an exception basis and only those indicators where there is a 
variation on the target of at least + or – 10% are highlighted. 

3. Cabinet last received a performance update against Corporate Health Performance 
Indicators in September.  Appendix 1 contains the latest update and shows: 

z Comparative performance against target and against the previous monitoring 
report; and 

z Narrative explaining variances from target where applicable. 

AGENDA ITEM 6

71



Risk Management 

Failure to review performance and improvement activity would undermine the 
implementation of the Council’s Performance Management Framework.  

Background Papers 
• Herefordshire Council’s Performance Management Framework 

• Best Value Performance Indicators 2003/2004 

72



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

  
A

bo
ve

 T
ar

ge
t P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

 
N

A
TI

O
N

A
L 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
IN

D
IC

A
TO

R
S 

A
ct

ua
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

B
V 

re
f 

In
di

ca
to

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
ou

ttu
rn

 fo
r 

20
03

/0
4 

Ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
20

04
/0

5 
A

pr
il 

– 
Ju

ly
 

A
pr

il 
– 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
A

pr
il 

– 
N

ov
em

be
r 

A
pr

il 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

A
im

 

B
V

 7
6b

 
H

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it 
se

cu
rit

y 
– 

nu
m

be
r o

f f
ra

ud
 in

ve
st

ig
at

or
s 

em
pl

oy
ed

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 c

as
el

oa
d 

0.
34

 
0.

33
 

0.
39

 
0.

37
 

 
 

H
ig

h 

B
V

 7
6c

 
H

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it 
se

cu
rit

y 
– 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f f
ra

ud
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 p
er

 
1,

00
0 

ca
se

lo
ad

 

40
.3

7 
38

 
63

 
53

 
 

 
H

ig
h 

S
in

ce
 A

pr
il 

20
04

 th
e 

B
en

ef
it 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
un

it 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

its
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

by
 m

ov
in

g 
2 

be
ne

fit
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
ffi

ce
rs

 in
to

 th
e 

un
it 

to
 d

ea
l w

ith
 

in
iti

al
 fr

au
d 

re
fe

rr
al

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ne

w
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 re

gi
m

e.
 

B
V

 7
6d

 
H

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it 
se

cu
rit

y 
– 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
ro

se
cu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
sa

nc
tio

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 c
as

el
oa

d 
 

5.
64

 
7 

9 
8 

 
 

H
ig

h 

S
in

ce
 A

pr
il 

20
04

 th
e 

B
en

ef
it 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
un

it 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

its
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

by
 m

ov
in

g 
2 

be
ne

fit
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
ffi

ce
rs

 in
to

 th
e 

un
it 

to
 d

ea
l w

ith
 

in
iti

al
 fr

au
d 

re
fe

rr
al

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ne

w
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 re

gi
m

e.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

of
fic

er
s 

be
in

g 
ab

le
 to

 p
ut

 m
or

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

in
to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
an

ct
io

ns
 

    

73



B
el

ow
 T

ar
ge

t P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
  

N
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

IN
D

IC
A

TO
R

S 

A
ct

ua
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

B
V 

re
f 

In
di

ca
to

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
ou

ttu
rn

 fo
r 

20
03

/0
4 

Ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
20

04
/0

5 
A

pr
il 

– 
Ju

ly
 

A
pr

il 
– 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
A

pr
il 

– 
N

ov
em

be
r 

A
pr

il 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

A
im

 

B
V

 1
1b

 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

op
 5

%
 o

f 
ea

rn
er

s 
th

at
 a

re
 fr

om
 b

la
ck

 a
nd

 
m

in
or

ity
 e

th
ni

c 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

2.
4%

 
2.

75
%

 
2.

4%
 

2.
4%

 
 

 
H

ig
h 

B
V

 1
2 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f w
or

ki
ng

 
da

ys
/s

hi
fts

 lo
st

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e 

pe
r f

ul
l t

im
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 

7.
16

 F
TE

 
7 

FT
E

 
6.

9 
FT

E
 

7.
8 

FT
E

 
 

 
Lo

w
 

Th
e 

re
du

ce
d 

nu
m

be
r o

f f
ul

l-t
im

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

di
st

or
ts

 th
es

e 
fig

ur
es

 o
ve

r t
he

 1
2-

m
on

th
 p

er
io

d.
  C

al
cu

la
tin

g 
th

e 
si

ck
ne

ss
 a

bs
en

ce
 o

ve
r 

a 
ro

lli
ng

 1
2-

m
on

th
 p

er
io

d 
an

d 
th

en
 d

iv
id

in
g 

by
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f F
TE

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

du
rin

g 
th

at
 p

er
io

d 
ge

ne
ra

te
s 

th
e 

da
ta

.  
Th

e 
ab

ov
e 

fig
ur

e 
do

es
 n

ot
 n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

tru
e 

si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

s 
at

 3
0th

 S
ep

te
m

be
r. 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

on
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 s

ic
k 

th
at

 a
re

 re
tu

rn
in

g 
to

 w
or

k 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
‘re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n 

an
d 

ph
as

ed
 re

tu
rn

 to
 w

or
k’

 
sc

he
m

e,
 b

ut
 a

re
 s

til
l c

la
ss

ed
 a

s 
si

ck
 fo

r t
ho

se
 d

ay
s 

w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 d

on
’t 

w
or

k.
 

 B
V

 7
6a

 
H

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it 
se

cu
rit

y 
– 

nu
m

be
r o

f c
la

im
an

ts
 v

is
ite

d 
pe

r 
1,

00
0 

ca
se

lo
ad

 

17
4.

25
 

25
5 

20
3 

10
4 

 
 

H
ig

h 

A
s 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt 

fo
r A

pr
il-

Ju
ly

, a
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 th
e 

vi
si

tin
g 

fu
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 h
as

 re
su

lte
d 

in
 v

is
its

 ta
ki

ng
 lo

ng
er

 th
an

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

.  
Th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 h

as
 v

ac
an

t p
os

ts
 a

nd
 e

xp
ec

t a
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
ve

r t
he

 re
m

ai
nd

er
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r w
he

n 
fu

lly
 

st
af

fe
d.

 
 

74



N
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

IN
D

IC
A

TO
R

S 

A
ct

ua
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

B
V 

re
f 

In
di

ca
to

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
ou

ttu
rn

 fo
r 

20
03

/0
4 

Ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
20

04
/0

5 
A

pr
il 

– 
Ju

ly
 

A
pr

il 
– 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
A

pr
il 

– 
N

ov
em

be
r 

A
pr

il 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

A
im

 

B
V

 7
8a

 
S

pe
ed

 o
f p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
– 

av
er

ag
e 

tim
e 

fo
r p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
ne

w
 c

la
im

s 
52

.3
4 

da
ys

 
32

 d
ay

s 
49

.6
 d

ay
s 

38
.5

 d
ay

s 
 

 
Lo

w
 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 ti

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 la

st
 p

er
io

d 
ha

s 
im

pr
ov

ed
 to

 2
7.

59
 d

ay
s,

 b
et

te
r t

ha
n 

ta
rg

et
.  

U
nf

or
tu

na
te

ly
, w

he
n 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 p

er
io

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 is
 s

til
l b

el
ow

 ta
rg

et
.  

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 s
ho

ul
d 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

at
 y

ea
r-

en
d.

 

B
V

 7
8b

 
S

pe
ed

 o
f p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
– 

av
er

ag
e 

tim
e 

fo
r p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
no

tif
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f 
ch

an
ge

s 
of

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

 

9.
77

 d
ay

s 
8 

da
ys

 
11

.2
 d

ay
s 

14
.1

 d
ay

s 
 

 
Lo

w
 

A
s 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt,

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
 h

av
e 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
tim

es
 ta

ki
ng

 lo
ng

er
.  

Th
e 

fig
ur

e 
fo

r A
pr

il-
S

ep
te

m
be

r d
oe

s 
no

t r
ep

re
se

nt
 d

et
er

io
ra

tio
n 

in
 re

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, b

ut
 a

 re
fle

ct
io

n 
th

at
 th

e 
ca

se
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

t t
he

 s
ta

rt 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

 in
cl

ud
ed

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

la
st

 fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r a
nd

 w
er

e 
co

ns
eq

ue
nt

ly
 p

ro
ce

ss
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

ol
d 

de
fin

iti
on

.  
G

iv
en

 th
at

 fu
tu

re
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
ne

w
 d

ef
in

iti
on

, t
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 u
nt

il 
a 

ba
se

lin
e 

is
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d.
  T

hi
s 

ye
ar

’s
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, a

nd
 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 w

ith
 n

at
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 w
hi

ch
 b

ec
om

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

la
te

r t
hi

s 
ye

ar
, w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
ye

ar
s.

 
 

LO
C

A
L 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
IN

D
IC

A
TO

R
S 

A
ct

ua
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
ou

ttu
rn

 fo
r 

20
03

/0
4 

Ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
20

04
/0

5 
A

pr
il 

– 
Ju

ly
 

A
pr

il 
– 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
A

pr
il 

– 
N

ov
em

be
r 

A
pr

il 
– 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

A
im

 

N
um

be
r o

f r
ec

or
de

d 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s,
 b

ot
h 

fo
rm

al
 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
al

 
43

4 
44

0 
85

 
( 1

47
 in

te
rim

 
ta

rg
et

)  

11
9 

(2
20

 in
te

rim
 

ta
rg

et
) 

 
(2

93
 in

te
rim

 
ta

rg
et

) 

 
(3

67
 in

te
rim

 
ta

rg
et

) 

H
ig

h 

75



LO
C

A
L 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
IN

D
IC

A
TO

R
S 

A
ct

ua
l P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
A

ct
ua

l 
ou

ttu
rn

 fo
r 

20
03

/0
4 

Ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
20

04
/0

5 
A

pr
il 

– 
Ju

ly
 

A
pr

il 
– 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
A

pr
il 

– 
N

ov
em

be
r 

A
pr

il 
– 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

A
im

 

N
um

be
r o

f r
ec

or
de

d 
fo

rm
al

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

 
25

0 
58

 
(8

3 
in

te
rim

 
ta

rg
et

) 

98
 

(1
25

 in
te

rim
 

ta
rg

et
) 

 
(1

67
 in

te
rim

 
ta

rg
et

) 

 
(2

08
 in

te
rim

 
ta

rg
et

) 

H
ig

h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 S

ta
ff 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

nt
er

vi
ew

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 

pr
ev

io
us

 1
2 

m
on

th
s 

71
%

 
80

%
 

61
%

 
61

%
 

 
 

H
ig

h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 a

gr
ee

d 
tra

in
in

g 
pl

an
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 S
R

D
 in

te
rv

ie
w

s 
71

%
 

80
%

 
61

%
 

61
%

 
 

 
H

ig
h 

To
 fi

t i
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e-

pl
an

ni
ng

 ti
m

et
ab

le
, t

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f S
R

D
s 

oc
cu

r t
ow

ar
ds

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r. 

 O
n 

th
is

 b
as

is
, p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 c
ha

ng
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
ne

xt
 ro

un
d 

of
 S

R
D

s 
ta

ke
s 

pl
ac

e 
ea

rly
 n

ex
t y

ea
r. 

 

76



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

N.M. Pringle, Chief Executive on (01432) 260044 

Cabinet16DecemberLLSC0.doc  

LEARNING AND SKILLS COUNCIL: STRATEGIC AREA 
REVIEW  

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY: CORPORATE STRATEGY AND 
FINANCE; EDUCATION AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES; COMMUNITY AND 
SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT; ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, MARKETS AND 

PROPERTY 

CABINET  16TH DECEMBER, 2004 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To receive a report on the Strategic Area Review Herefordshire and Worcestershire currently 
being conducted by the Learning and Skills Council and to respond to the formal 
consultation. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision   

Recommendations 

THAT in responding to the Consultation Document, Cabinet endorses the overall 
approach to the Strategic Review and in relation to paragraph 11 of the Consultation 
Document which identifies the significant strategic issues and options for 
Herefordshire: 

(a)  Cabinet strongly supports the pursuit of Option (c) involving the double 
dissolution of Herefordshire College of Technology and Herefordshire College 
of Art and Design in order to create a new corporation which would receive the 
assets and liabilities from both founder organisations; 

(b)  Cabinet supports the local Learning and Skills Councils in its wish to work 
closely with the Pershore Group of Colleges on the future of the Holme Lacy 
Campus to ensure better integration of its facilities with this new institution; 

and 

(c)  Cabinet supports the view expressed by the Learning and Skills Council that 
all three existing colleges on the Folly Lane Campus need to make even 
greater efforts to support the new proposed institution through better shared 
utilisation of resources including premises and common services and funding. 

Reasons 

To enable the Council to respond to the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Strategic Area 

AGENDA ITEM 7

77



Review Strategic Issues and Options Consultation Document. 

Background - College Provision - Folly Lane, Hereford 

1. As part of the Strategic Area Review of provision in Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire, the Learning and Skills Council Herefordshire and Worcestershire 
(LLSC) has undertaken a specific review of Herefordshire College of Technology and 
Herefordshire College of Art and Design in order to determine if the current structure 
meets the needs of individuals, employers and the wider community in the most cost-
effective way.   

2. KPMG, an independent consultancy, was engaged to undertake this work on behalf 
of the LLSC in 2002/03.  As a result, the LLSC considered the potential alternatives 
and requested the Colleges to undertake a feasibility study into the dissolution of 
both institutions and the creation of a single new college.  Unfortunately, despite 
ongoing discussion, no progress has been made in implementing this 
recommendation.   

3. As part of the more recent Strategic Area Review activities, the LLSC has 
reconsidered the options and confirmed its original decision as its preferred option. 

Strategic Options 

4. The following strategic options have been considered: 

A. Status quo 
 Continuation of separate colleges. 
 
B. Wider collaboration 
 Both formal and informal. 
 
C. Dissolution of Herefordshire College of Art and Design and Herefordshire 

College of Technology 
 Double dissolution of the two colleges, leading to a new corporation 

with a specialism in art and design and a higher education curriculum. 
 
D. Dissolution of Herefordshire College of Art and Design and Herefordshire 

College of Technology. 
 Double dissolution of the two colleges leading to a new corporation with 

a specialism in art and design, but higher education programmes to be 
delivered by other providers. 

 
E. Single dissolution and merger of one college with the other 
 Closure of either Herefordshire College of Technology or Herefordshire 

College of Art and Design, and activities transferred to the remaining 
institution. 

 
F. Three way dissolution including Herefordshire College of Technology, 

Herefordshire College of Art and Design and Pershore Group of Colleges 
(Holme Lacy) 

 Three colleges are all dissolved leading to the creation of a new 
institution incorporating all further and higher education specialisms. 

 
G. Tertiary solution. 
 Merger between Herefordshire College of Art and Design, Herefordshire 

78



College of Technology, Hereford Sixth Form College and Holme Lacy, 
with 14+ and higher education collaborative links. 

Considerations 

5. A summary of the benefits of the recommended strategic options and the reasons for 
the decision to support the double dissolution model as advanced by the LLSC are 
set out in Appendix 1. 

6. Whilst the detailed information provided by the LLSC is important to the Council’s 
consideration, the key strategic issue for the Council is to secure a high quality, 
sustainable offer of further education for all those Herefordshire students who wish to 
continue their further education in the County.  That is a vital plank for the individual 
development of learners in Herefordshire but also has the capacity to support the 
Council’s ambitions for the vibrancy of the local economy.   

7. The Council also recognises the need for significant investment in the Folly Lane 
Campus if that ambition is to be realised. 

8. It is not the intention of this report to detract in any way from the significant 
achievements of the individual colleges.  The Council does, however, have to 
recognise that the site is currently occupied by three separate colleges which 
together with the Holme Lacy arm of the Pershore Group of Colleges seeks to 
provide further education to a population of 177,000.  The Herefordshire College of 
Technology is considered to be a small to medium size college and the College of Art 
and Design a small college but as is indicated in the Appendix, both carry the fixed 
overheads of larger colleges.  Even if the double dissolution was to be pursued, the 
new institution would still in national terms only be a medium sized further education 
college. 

9. The Herefordshire College of Art and Design has sought to pursue a relatively high 
profile campaign for the retention of its institutional identity.  Whilst it is possible to 
sympathise with the desire of individual institutions to continue in their current format, 
particularly where there is evidence of high quality work with their particular cohort of 
students, the Council has a wider responsibility to secure a viable future base for 
provision of further education.  This needs to secure provision into the future and to 
ensure that a quality further education offer is available to the whole range of further 
education students. 

10. That appears, at least in part, to be the key to securing future much needed 
investment in the Folly Lane Campus with the prospect, in the longer-term, of using 
that successful further education provision as a base for an extended higher 
education offering in the County.   

11. This paper, whilst supporting the overall approach to the Strategic Area Review, 
concentrates on what are described as the significant issues and options for 
Herefordshire.  There are other important recommendations in relation to the broader 
14 - 19 agenda and particularly the role of sixth forms within our schools.  These will 
be subject to continuing professional dialogue between the Council and LLSC.  The 
more important issues will involve the relevant Cabinet Member.   

79



Alternative Options 

The strategic options are set out in the paper. 

Risk Management 

This is a consultation document and therefore only indirectly a specific risk to the Council.  
There is a wider risk, however, to the future stability of further education provision within the 
County. 

Consultees 

None. 

Background Papers 

Herefordshire and Worcestershire Strategic Area Review Strategic Issues and Options 
Consultation Document - Learning and Skills Council Herefordshire and Worcestershire 
November 2004. 

80



APPENDIX 1 

Summary of benefits of Recommended Strategic Option: 

9 Better integrated curriculum offer, improved curriculum 
planning, development and delivery. 

 
9 Better access to funding to support capital investment on 

the Folly Lane site. 
 
9 Reduced running costs and management costs. 

 
9 Improved long-term financial viability. 

 
9 Improved integration of accommodation usage. 

 
9 Improved employer engagement and development of responsive 

provision. 
 
9 Improved accessibility of provision and learner integration 

and easier student progression. 
 

Reasons for decision to support the double dissolution model 
 

• Not enough migration between the two colleges. 
• Lack of common matrix of curriculum offer. 
• Pre entry level/special needs requires strengthening at 

Herefordshire College of Art and Design. 
• Reduction in overheads through central services - savings 

on Principal, Finance, Marketing Central Services. 
• Need for better strategic planning and self-assessment 

reports for the campus. 
• Need to improve/increase progression opportunities. 
• Benefits of joint marketing and publicity and promotional 

opportunities, e.g. joint open days, awards events, careers 
events, enrichment opportunities etc. 

• Benefits of combined market research to meet local and 
regional objectives. 

• Benefits of shared student support services eg student 
accommodation, guidance and career information. 

• Sharing of the Learning Resource Centre. 
• Benefits of best practice sharing to tackle local 

initiatives linked to local LSC priority objectives of 
employer engagement, basic skills and the 14-19 agenda. 

• Benefits of sharing lesson observations teams and best 
practice teaching and learning. 

• Development of a Quality and Standards Unit with best 
practice opportunities shared across the campus, lesson 
plans etc in order to meet OfSTED and QCA requirements. 

• Benefits of a common system for monitoring, reviewing and 
evaluation of programmes and student perceptions. 

• Benefits of developing a joint Quality/Curriculum Review 
Panel, which would assist in improving curriculum planning 
and development. 

• Benefits of developing a common virtual learning 
environment for student access – includes development of 
website access across the two college areas. 

81



• Benefits of sharing retention and achievement strategies 
and Educational Maintenance Allowance systems and 
procedures to improve services to students. 

• Benefits of joint staff development opportunities and joint 
curriculum development. 

• Benefits of pooling part-time staff resources – register of 
part-time staff availability. 

• Opportunity to develop a co-ordinated response to higher 
education needs in Herefordshire. 

• The opportunity to change an operating deficit in each of 
the 10 years since incorporation for the Herefordshire 
College of Technology into a balanced budget or even a 
surplus through balancing the accounts of the College of 
Technology and the College of Art and Design, reduced 
overheads and new opportunities for curriculum development. 

• To help remove the block on funding capital development of 
the Herefordshire Learning Village.  Current block on 
grounds of financial viability, lack of coherence and 
integration of curriculum offer – funding from AWM, Europe 
and LSC currently on hold. 

• Improved decision making by having one Board of Governors 
to make decisions not two thus leading to speedier and more 
strategic decision making. 

• The ending of Specialist College uplift funding in 
2006/2007 will provide greater pressures to the funding of 
the College of Art and Design. 

• The proposed review of Specialist Colleges and their links 
to regional and local strategies creates a further concern 
for a small self standing college such as the College of 
Art and Design.  The proposed development of FE Colleges 
with specialisms is likely to be of benefit to larger sub-
regional colleges such as the merger of the College of 
Technology and the College of Art and Design. 

• The College of Technology has only survived through the 
exceptional support funding that has been made available 
from the Learning and Skills Council.  From 2005/2006 this 
funding will no longer be available, thus putting even 
greater pressure on the College of Technology to survive.  
This would have major implications for the residents and 
businesses of Herefordshire and surrounding areas. 

• Less confusion for public and employers about the college 
provision.  This would also assist Connexions staff in 
promoting further education for 14-19 group in particular. 

• Herefordshire College of Technology is not able to 
subsidise its higher cost provision with standard classroom 
based courses that can attract higher group sizes and 
therefore more income because these are provided by the 
Hereford Sixth Form and the Herefordshire College of Art 
and Design. 

• The Herefordshire College of Technology and the 
Herefordshire College of Art and Design have suffered from 
a lack of investment in the estate in recent years because 
of funding difficulties and this has effectively diminished 

82



the asset base.  A merged college would provide a better 
opportunity to address this shortfall. 

• A merged college has the potential to offer improved 
working conditions for staff and harmonised terms and 
conditions. 

• Merged colleges would provide better utilisation of capital 
assets and accommodation. 

• Currently the College of Technology is considered to be a 
small to medium sized college and the College of Art and 
Design a small college, but both carry the fixed overheads 
of larger colleges. 

• Demographic factors such as sparsity of population 
contribute to low class sizes which are difficult to 
operate economically.  Demographic forecasting shows a 
reduction in the size of the main cohort in future years. 

• Both colleges have much more to do in meeting the needs of 
local employers.  A merged college would provide a greater 
opportunity to make a bigger impact on the agenda. 

• The development of ICT based learning materials and their 
associated support systems is expensive.  Pooled resources 
would enable more work to be undertaken in the development 
of this area if the colleges were merged. 

• There are potential benefits of purchase and implementation 
of common MIS and Finance systems.  The two colleges would 
enable a better system to be purchased at a more 
competitive price.  This could be improved even further if 
linked to the Hereford Sixth Form College. 

• A merged college would offer a new opportunity for re-
branding of the campus and therefore a better opportunity 
to increase participation by both individuals and 
employers. 

• Because of the financial difficulties there has been a 
focus on micro-management that prevented the colleges from 
taking a strategic view and reforming of provision. 

• With a total county population of 170,000 sparsely 
distributed in a rural area, the College of Technology can 
only sustain its range of vocational programme by running 
small and low contribution courses in several curriculum 
areas.  A static and future reducing 16-18 population with 
an existing participation rate of 84.6 per cent leaves the 
college little prospect of funded growth.  Without major 
changes to the portfolio through merger or a revised 
funding mechanism, its long term viability is very 
questionable. 

 
 

83



84



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Marie Rosenthal, County Secretary and Solicitor on (01432) 260200 

ReformoftheRegistrationService0.doc  

REFORM OF THE REGISTRATION SERVICE 
PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY: HUMAN RESOURCES AND 

CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES 

CABINET  16TH DECEMBER, 2004 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To agree the approach required to ensure a successful transition of this service to the 
Council. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision. 

Recommendations 

THAT  (a)  To provide a single Herefordshire Registration District with a central 
office in Hereford City by means of a scheme change;  

 Subject to public consultation: 

(b)  continue to provide register offices at Leominster and Ross which will 
remain open as full time permanent outstations and be used with the 
Hereford office, as bases to provide a peripatetic registration service to 
the County; 

and 

 (c) continue to use the existing Register offices at Kington, Bromyard and 
Ledbury as by appointment caller offices, with their marriage rooms re-
designated as “approved premises” thus achieving a “five day a week” 
service in these areas. 

Reasons 

To continue to ensure excellent registration services to the public and seamless transition 
during the new legislative changes to registration services. 

Considerations 

1. National plans are now well advanced to modernise the Civil Registration Service in 
England and Wales.  The vision is to transfer the historic service over time from a 
heavily regulated and labour intensive service, whose roots lie firmly back in the 
1800’s, to a dynamic, customer focused service fit to meet the needs of the 
population into the 21st Century. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

85



2. Staff within the Herefordshire Registration Service have been monitoring these 
change proposals for some time with a view to ensuring that the Council is well 
placed to respond as and when the necessary statutory framework is put into place.  

3. A draft Regulatory Reform Order (RRO) setting out proposals for reforming the 
registration of birth and death procedures, access to records and the organisation of 
the Registration Service within England and Wales has been placed before 
Parliament.  When enacted later next year it will provide for the transfer of the 
existing Crown staff to the employment of the Council. 

4. Parliamentary committees are considering two separate Regulatory Reform Orders.  
It is expected that part 1 of the Regulatory Reform Order (RRO), relating to the 
organisation of the local registration service and the registration of birth and death 
events, will reach the statute book in mid to late 2005 with reforms introduced 
early/late 2006.  Implementation of this RRO will mean that births, deaths and still 
births are registered onto a central database rather than the current practice of 
recording details in a register.  All certificates produced or future access to the 
information will be from this centrally held electronic record. 

5. The Civil Partnership Bill is expected to become law in early 2005 with the 
introduction of interim arrangements for the taking of preliminaries and registration of 
Civil Partnerships from October 2005.  It is intended that these events will also be 
recorded on a central national database.  Over time the public will be able to access 
these systems direct. 

6. The RRO part 2 relating to marriage aspects, while expected to be on the statute 
books by late 2005, is now likely to be delayed with reforms being introduced in the 
last half of 2006.  Full implementation of the Civil Partnership proposals are likely to 
be introduced at the same time as the marriage reforms. 

7. The postponement of the presentation of the RRO provisions relating to marriage will 
cause significant administrative problems because although staff will be local 
authority employees by September 2005 they will also remain Crown Servants 
appointed as Superintendent Registrars with current powers and responsibilities and 
duties required under the current legislation.  This situation will exist until the second 
RRO for Marriages is approved by Parliament sometime in last half of 2006.  This 
means we will need to phase the new arrangements over the next two years with the 
existing staff group. 

Constraints 

8. RRO1 and RRO2 are enabling legislation only, which will be brought into being by 
the Registrar General by Order. Proposed dates for implementation are therefore 
“not set in stone” and are likely to be moveable.  The Service has to be ready to 
continue under the present rules and regulations yet be ready to comply with the new 
procedures when required by the Registrar General.  However, the existing 
“technical” registration requirements and law will not change.  The RRO assumes 
that parliamentary scrutiny will go “according to plan”, however a general election 
held in 2005 could alter the proposed dates substantially. 

9. The Council must consult regularly with its community on the services offered, 
delivery of modes, places and times that registration services will be available and 
the quality and level of service to be offered and on changes to those aspects.  The 
Registrar General will issue guidance shortly on the form of consultation. Adequate 
consultation must be held prior to a scheme change.  Once Cabinet have approved 
these proposals a consultation will take place. 

86



10. Adequate accommodation must also be provided including interview rooms, marriage 
rooms and for the storage of and daily access to records etc.  

11. The central database, to be established and controlled by the Registrar General, is 
key to these proposals and has to be in place before the RRO’s can be brought into 
being.  This aspect is still at an early stage. 

Financial Implications 

12. The Herefordshire Registration Service forms part of the County Secretary and 
Solicitor’s Department.  The Service is and will continue to be regulated by the 
Registrar General, although funded by the Council.  In 2003/04, total expenditure 
was £312,339.  Employee costs accounted for 63% of expenditure and the net cost 
of the service per head of population was 0.46pence.  In recent years, annual income 
has increased year on year.  Currently, there are 11 full time equivalent posts across 
the county.  These employees will transfer to the Council in September 2005.  It is 
expected that the income currently received across the Registration Service will fall 
once implementation of the National Review is fully complete.  In that case, unless 
income from other sources has been identified, reductions in the current level of 
service would have to be considered.  However, until the legislative framework and 
central database is fully in place, it is not possible to predict the financial implications 
for the Council.  Certainly, there is sufficient funding to allow the service to continue 
at present service level for the next and possibly following financial years.  The 
situation will be closely monitored and will be the subject of a further more detailed 
report once the statutory transfer is complete.  

One District 

13. The existing 6 Registration Districts for Births and Deaths will automatically be 
merged into one as part of the new proposals under the RRO.  However Marriages 
will still retain existing District Boundaries until late 2006 or even later.  If we retain 
the same structure as is currently in place i.e. 6 districts then we will need 6 SRs as 
each district requires a Superintendent Registrar (SR).  If on the other hand a 
scheme change is implemented to amalgamate into one unified district, then only 1 
SR need be appointed across the county supported by Deputy SRs. It is only 
following the implementation of RRO2 that district boundaries will no longer exist, as 
we know them now.  Until then, people will have to continue to give notice to marry 
within the district in which they reside. 

14. There are real operational advantages in moving to one district for marriages at the 
same time as RRO1 comes into being, especially involved with staffing.  This can 
only be done by a Scheme change which is strongly recommended. 

A Way Forward 

15. These changes provide an opportunity to integrate some of the “front office” aspects 
of the service into the Info Service, as is already happening at Bromyard.  Info 
Offices can also be used to carry out interviews.  However, because of the expected 
delays and piecemeal introduction of the new legislation the Council will still have to 
continue to provide Register Offices, Marriage Rooms and adequate storage for 
records that require daily access.  

16. It is proposed that the current Register Offices at Kington, Bromyard and Ledbury 
continue to provide local services by appointment pending the development of the 
Info Service across the county.  The consultation exercise will seek views on the 
availability and range of services people require. 

87



New Services  

17. The new RRO will allow local authorities the power to provide new registration 
services as a way of maximising income. These will be developed in accordance with 
public consultation, a defined marketing strategy and plan in order to provide 
additional civil celebratory ceremonies, in particular civil baby naming, reaffirmation 
of vows, and possibly burial ceremonies. 

Alternative Options 

There are no viable alternative options. 

Risk Management 

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that the service continues to be available 
throughout the transitional legislative period and beyond. 

Consultees 

Registration Officers are being consulted about these proposals.  The public will need to be 
consulted before implementing any changes to the current levels of service.  

Background Papers 

None Identified 

88



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
 David Johnson, Head of Human Resources on 01432 383055 

NovemberHRStrategyProgress0.doc  

HUMAN RESOURCES STRATEGY PROGRESS 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY: 
HUMAN RESOURCES AND CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES  

CABINET 16TH DECEMBER, 2004  
 
Wards Affected 

None 

Purpose 

To consider progress against the Council’s Human Resources (HR) Strategy including main 
findings from the 2004 Staff Opinion Survey, and 2003-4 Exit Surveys. 

Key Decision 

This is not a key decision. 

Recommendations 

THAT the report be noted. 

Considerations 

1. HR Strategy performance is tracked twice each year using employee data (available 
at financial year end), and Staff Opinion Survey data available in the autumn (see 
Appendix 1 for the full performance update). This report is concerned with HR 
Strategy progress in light of the Staff Opinion information and Exit Survey 
information. It is worth noting that the Survey was issued during September, seven 
weeks after announcements regarding Job Evaluation and Single Status.  

2. The current HR Strategy lifetime expires in 2005. The Pay and Workforce 
Development Strategy 2005-8, currently being developed, will replace it. 

3. The 2004 Staff Opinion Survey response rate was 38%, slightly down on 2003 
(41%). Work will be done during 2004 to find ways to capture employee opinions, in 
particular in geographically disperse groups - where lack of affiliation to ‘the 
corporate centre’ traditionally results in low response rates. The response rate is, 
however, sufficient for the information to be relied on as indicative for the majority of 
employees.  

4. Five key themes for action were identified in the 2003 Staff Opinion Survey. Two can 
be directly linked to indicators in the HR Strategy – Communications, Recognition. 
These are shown in Appendix A alongside the relevant HR Strategy performance 
indicators. The three improvement themes from the 2003 Staff Opinion Survey 
indirectly linked to the HR Strategy are 

a. Increase confidence in senior management’s leadership. The majority of 
questions relating to confidence in senior management have seen a positive 

AGENDA ITEM 9

89



 

improvement over 2003 Survey; there were improvements in views on senior 
managers’ concern with how employees feel, that their decision making is 
fair, that information is believable, and that relations are good; this may in part 
be due to the high profile of senior managers over the summer re Job 
Evaluation and Single Status; there is increased confidence that the Council 
is committed to supporting employees during Job Evaluation 30% in 2004 
against 21% in 2003. Exit Survey information cites ‘the way people are 
managed’ as the second main reason people leave the Council (first is Job 
Content dissatisfaction). Clarity about job objectives and priorities was 85% in 
2004, against 87% in 2003. 

b. Increase belief that the Survey results will be taken seriously and things done 
as a result; There was no significant difference between 2004 and 2003 
opinions in this area;  

c. Improve confidence that things are getting better. Confidence that things are 
getting better has increased slightly - 20% in 2004, over 18% in 2003. 
Motivation to perform well has also improved - 51% in 2004 against 46% in 
2003.  

5. Responses around ‘equality of opportunity’ remain static compared with 2003. This 
may be a result of increased awareness of these issues, however the Diversity 
Group will consider improvement actions for 2005. This area will form part of 
proposals in the new Pay and Workforce Development Strategy.  

6. Satisfaction with terms and conditions has not moved significantly, nor has 
satisfaction with earnings. Organisational changes appear to have had some impact 
with job security confidence 41% in 2004 compared with 52% in 2003; intentions to 
be working in the Council in 12 months time were 51% in 2004 against 55% in 2003. 

7. There has been a significant increase in employees agreeing that their contribution is 
recognised – 59% in 2004 against 43% in 2001.  

8. There is an indication that communications confidence may be increasing – 34% in 
2004 against 32% in 2003 (27% in 2001), but still short of the 60% target.  On the 
four questions regarding communicating change (the Health and Safety Executive 
HSE recommended follow up questions), the results are more positive. Responses 
were in the range 55%-64%. The HSE recommended target is 85%. A 
communications audit recently underway will bring forward recommendations on how 
to improve this position.  Communications preferences clearly indicate face-to-face 
(team meetings and briefings) and email. This area will be addressed in the Pay and 
Workforce Development Strategy, with clear links to employee communications 
(Communications Strategy). 

9. Agreement that ‘opportunities for development within the job are good’ was 36% in 
2004 against 54% in 2003. This is supported by Exit Survey information where career 
progression is cited as the most common attraction of the new employer (next were 
Pay, and Work Environment). Over a third of leavers rated career opportunities as 
‘poor’, whilst training rated ‘good’ by more that half. Consistent with the employee 
focus groups held during the summer, the issue here seems less about ‘training’, and 
more about opportunities post-training. Proposals on this issue will form part of the 
new Pay and Workforce Development Strategy so that, as far as possible, the 
Council provides transparent and viable career opportunities to help employees 
develop.  

10.     Agreement about opportunities to work flexibly (to balance work/home life) was 77% in 

90



 

2004, against 73% in 2003 (65% in 2001). This area has risen year on year. 
Proposals in the Pay and Workforce Development Strategy will include promoting 
this aspect of Council employment (alongside improved ‘packaging and presenting’ 
of existing attractive benefits) to proactively tackle recruitment and retention issues, 
and to help meet Implementing Electronic Government (IEG) targets (part of the 
Council’s IEG Statement). 

Risk Management 

Risks inherent in the above will be detailed in a new Pay and Workforce Development 
Strategy for the Council. They will centre on the need to generate capacity to deliver in areas 
identified for improvement, and the need for forward planning to deliver improvements. 
There are risks to the Council in terms of its ability to attract and retain suitably skilled 
employees to provide quality services if a Pay and Workforce Strategy is not developed by 
31st March, 2005. 

Consultees 

Chief Executive’s Management Team, Staff Opinion Survey Group, Human Resources 
Management Team, all employees via Staff Opinion Survey, Trade Unions (Joint 
Consultative Forum). Further consultation will take place with managers forum members. 

Background Papers 

• Exit Survey Report 2003-4 

• Staff Opinion Survey 2004Headline Report  

• Human Resources Strategy 2002-5 

91



APPENDIX 1 

 

HR STRATEGY PERFORMANCE 
AGAINST SELECTED TARGETS 

* bold italics = one of the five priority areas from 2003 Staff Opinion Survey 

Performance Indicator Council 
2001 

Council 
2002 

Council 
2003 

Council 
2004 

Council 
Target By When 

*% agree their work is valued in the 
organisation(see question on 
recognition) 

51% 59% 43% 
See 

question 
below  

50% End 2005 

% agree they know how their work 
contributes to organisational priorities 51% 60% 61% (64%) 55% End 2005 

%  agree they are treated equally and 
fairly whatever their religion 84% 80% 75% 75% 90% End 2005 

%  agree they are treated equally and 
fairly whatever their race 81% 78% 73% 73% 90% End 2005 

%  agree they are treated equally and 
fairly whatever their gender 76% 75% 72% 72% 85% End 2005 

%  agree they are treated equally and 
fairly whatever their sexual orientation 73% 71% 66% 66% 75% By end 

2005 

%  agree they are treated equally and 
fairly whatever their age N/A N/A 68% 68% Not set Not set 

% satisfied with terms and conditions  63% 73% 62% {61%} 63% End 2002 

* % agree communications in the 
organisation work well 27% 39% 32% (34%) 60% End 2005 

* % agree managers communicate well 48% 55% 48% (49%) 60% End 2005 

% agree they can develop their skills and 
potential in their current job 60% N/A% 59% {36%} 75% End 2005 

% agree opportunities for developing and 
keeping job interesting are good (replaced 
by above question in 2004) 

48% 60% 54% 
See 

question 
above 

75% End 2005 

% agree there is flexibility to help meet 
home/work commitments 65% 68% 73% (77%) 80% End 2005 

*% agree that their contribution is 
recognised 43% 52% n/a (59%) 60% End 2005 

% agree they know when they have done 
a good job (see question on recognition) 58% 72% 74% n/a 70% End 2005 

% agree their manager takes steps to 
reduce H&S risks  70% 80% 72% 72% 90% End 2005 

92



 

Performance Indicator Council 
2001 

Council 
2002 

Council 
2003 

Council 
2004 

Council 
Target By When 

% agree they sometimes feel 
bullied/harassed by members 11% 12% 13% 13% 0% By 2005 & 

beyond 

% agree they sometimes feel 
bullied/harassed by managers 19% 17% 16% (18%) 0% By 2005 & 

beyond 

% agree they sometimes feel 
bullied/harassed by colleagues 13% 12% 11% (12%) 0% By 2005 & 

beyond 

% agree they sometimes feel 
bullied/harassed by clients/service users 38% 37% 41% {39%} 0% By 2005 & 

beyond 

 

KEY 

{ } = lower than 2003 Survey  

( ) = higher than 2003 Survey 

93



94



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Julie Holmes, Head of ICT on (01432) 260403 

IMPLEMENTING ELECTRONIC GOVERNMENT (IEG4) 
STATEMENT 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY:  
HUMAN RESOURCES AND CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES 

CABINET 16TH DECEMBER , 2004  
 
Wards Affected 

Countywide 

Purpose 

To approve the Implementing Electronic Government Return 2004 (IEG4). Please note that 
the text for local case studies and efficiency savings detailed may yet change as the process 
of validation progresses. 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Recommendation 

THAT the IEG4 return be approved. 

Reasons 

The IEG4 return forms the basis of a distribution of a further  £150,000 of local e-government 
capital funding from the ODPM in 2005 /06. Failure to complete any elements of the IEG4 
proforma may result in the withholding of this funding. 

Considerations 

1. This is the fourth year the Council has been required to submit an IEG return to 
central government to set out how it has or plans to achieve improvements in 
customer focused services underpinned by information technology.  The ODPM has 
provided a prescriptive format which cannot be changed. This year the ODPM has 
mandated that the IEG4 return be submitted through the use of an electronic toolkit 
(ESD-toolkit); this toolkit will be used to regularly monitor local progress in the 
delivery of e-government through to March 2006.   

2. Self-assessment against priority outcomes appears in this year’s IEG return for the 
first time.  These priority outcomes provide a focus for reaching 100% e-enablement 
of services by December 2005 and shift the delivery onus onto senior management 
and service heads rather than the ICT department. Priority Outcomes are defined in 
a more specific way to overcome some of the interpretations possible under BVPI 
157. During October 2004 an exercise was carried out to allocate responsibility for 
each priority outcome to the appropriate Director/ Head of Department. 

3. Building on the work undertaken by Sir Peter Gershon, the ODPM has set a target on 
local government to improve its effectiveness and efficiency in delivering services by 
2.5% per annum up to 2007/08. E-government is expected to make a substantial 

AGENDA ITEM 10

95



contribution towards the achievement of this target and, for the first time, efficiency 
gains (both forecast and actual) from services in e-procurement, e-recruitment and e-
payments are part of the IEG4 return. 

Risk Management 

1. Failure to complete any elements of the IEG4 proforma may result in the withholding 
of further £150,000 of capital funding in 2006/07, therefore clear ownership of the 
forecast and actual deliverables has been identified to ensure progress is monitored 
and issues flagged at an early stage. 

2. Two key areas for IEG4 are those of customer service and e-procurement.   To date 
our progress in both these key service areas has been slow.   The customer service 
targets are being addressed with the clear commitment to the Service Improvement 
Programme with member sponsorship from Cabinet Member HR & Support Services 
and executive sponsorship from the Director of Policy & Community.  Likewise the e-
procurement challenges will be addressed with a greater emphasis placed on service 
efficiencies across the Authority. 

Consultees 

The IEG4 return has been produced as a consequence of a Council wide collaboration to 
collate and validate the information provided within the report. 

Background Papers 

None identified 

 

96



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

N.M. Pringle, Chief Executive on (01432) 260044 

PropertyReview0.doc  

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY REVIEW 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, 
MARKETS AND PROPERTY 

CABINET  16TH DECEMBER, 2004 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To determine how best to take forward the recommendations contained in the Property 
Management Scrutiny Review which recommendations were considered by the Strategic 
Monitoring Committee at its meeting on 4th November, 2004. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision   

Recommendations 

THAT   (a)  a wider reference group be established to approve the terms of 
reference of the groups referred to in (b) below and to drive forward the 
wider review of policies and strategies and management arrangements 
and to examine targets for performance and finance 

and 

(b)  the following further groups be formed as detailed in the report below in 
line with the Audit Commission’s publication “Hot Property”. 

(i) Service Property Group 

(ii) Administrative Property Group (Accommodation Board) 

(iii) Non Operational Property with consideration being given to the 
potential division of consideration of the smallholdings estate 
and the balance of non-operational property. 

Financial Implications 

There are none arising out of this report but there will be financial implications for the 
Council arising out of the further work proposed in the report.   

Reasons 

The Property Management Scrutiny Review reported to Strategic Monitoring Committee on 
4th November, 2004.   Whilst the Strategic Monitoring Committee accepted the Review 

AGENDA ITEM 11

97



report which contained some 27 recommendations, they also recognised that the nature and 
scope of the review meant that there were a number of areas where further work would be 
required.  Some of that additional work, however, depended on the acceptance of key policy 
issues by the Executive and it was felt that little would be achieved by asking the Property 
Review Group to further refine their work. 

The Chief Executive was asked to prepare a report for Cabinet to advise how the Executive 
might best take forward the Executive's consideration of the Property Review. 

Considerations 

1. A copy of the Property Management Scrutiny Review is attached as a confidential 
Appendix because it is necessary background information for Cabinet in reaching a 
conclusion on the recommendations set out in  this report and does disclose terms 
proposed or to be proposed by or to the authority in the course of negotiations for a 
contract for the acquisition or disposal or property or the supply of goods or services.  
The extent to which that report reveals commercial information is quite limited and it 
is felt desirable that the principles to be adopted in further pursuing the Property 
Review should be open to public scrutiny. 

2. The Property Review has made a constructive start on identifying the issues but in 
very few areas has it been able to gather the evidence to enable it to make final 
recommendations.  For the most part its recommendations are in the form of setting 
a framework for future work.  Its recommendations, particularly in the policy areas, 
therefore tend to be in terms of urging performance measures and targets be 
established and/or that more explicit and transparent criteria should be created as a 
basis for supporting future prioritisation and decision making.  Those approaches are 
perhaps most apparent in relation to the recommendations which relate to underlying 
policies and strategies, management arrangements and performance and cost.   

3. Where the report provides a firmer basis for Executive action, however, is in its 
adoption from “hot property” of the categorisation of service property (e.g. property 
which supports service provision such as libraries, highways, depots, older people’s 
accommodation, Info in Herefordshire points, administrative property (broadly 
speaking office accommodation) and non-operational property (e.g. industrial 
estates, smallholdings, markets, etc).  That categorisation does provide the basis for 
breaking down the work identified in the Property Review into more manageable 
blocks of work.  It is, therefore, suggested that the work on those blocks be 
undertaken on the basis of the groupings proposed below.  The initial task of each of 
those groupings would be to establish the terms of reference within which their initial 
work would be undertaken reporting to the wider reference group described below 
which will examine issues of policy and strategy and examine the organisation and 
financial basis for the provision of Property Services. 

4. It is proposed the group should be as follows: 

(a) Service property - there will be a need for service representation on this group 
although there are also clear financial links and links to the Council’s 
corporate planning process. 

(b) Administrative property - the work of this group could be taken forward 
effectively by the existing Accommodation Board which comprises the Leader 
of the Council, the Cabinet Member (Economic Development, Markets and 
Property),. the Chief Executive, the Director of Environment, the County 
Secretary and Solicitor and the County Treasurer.   

98



(c) Non-operational property - this is an important area and there is a need to 
distinguish between property which is held purely for investment purposes 
and property, which whilst constituting an investment, also fulfills some aspect 
of the Council’s policy.  The most obvious examples of such activity are 
industrial development property (where that property is held specifically 
against aspects of the Council’s Economic Development Strategy) and the 
smallholdings estate (where it would be essential to identify criteria against 
which those investments could be judged).  There would be a clear need for 
involvement from Economic Development and from those managing the 
smallholdings estate but it is important that that professional experience 
should be used to test the criteria against which the property is held currently 
and into the future not simply to endorse existing established policy. Once the 
general criteria for the working of that group is established, Cabinet may wish 
to consider whether in view of the specialist nature of the smallholdings 
estate, the consideration of the smallholdings estate and other non-
operational property might more effectively be pursued separately. 

5. Alongside the practical work in relation to those different aspects of the property 
function, there will be a need to establish a wider reference group to drive forward 
major strategic and policy issues, to establish appropriate performance measures 
and to consider the organisational arrangements for property.  The wider reference 
group needs to be run in parallel to each of the property based groups and it is 
suggested that an appropriate membership might be the Leader of the Council, the 
Cabinet Member (Economic Development, Markets and Property), the Cabinet 
Member (Rural Regeneration and Smallholdings), the Chief Executive, a Director and 
the County Treasurer or his representative. 

6. Given the difficulties referred to by the Property Review Group in obtaining accurate 
and consistent financial and management information, it is important that there is a 
single member of the County Treasurer’s staff assigned to support each of the 
groups in obtaining that information.   

Alternative Options 

There are a whole series of options ranging from continuing the process as a single exercise 
as undertaken by the original Property Review Team, or differently grouping the basic 
groupings of property referred to in the Audit Commission’s publication “Hot Property”. 

Risk Management 

Whilst the Council’s current Asset Management Plan is well rated, there is a risk that the 
Council’s grasp of the strategic use of its property holdings will not be maintained unless the 
review is methodically pursued and implemented.  There are also financial risks associated 
with the review. 

Consultees 

No immediate further consultation is envisaged.  The Property Review Team consulted 
extensively through the many interviews which they undertook. 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

99



100



AGENDA ITEM 11a

101

 

Document is Restricted



102



103

 

Document is Restricted



142



AGENDA ITEM 12

143

 

Document is Restricted



152


